Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 15, 2014 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: 2471 Lousetown Road, APN 003-041-01, Purchase.

2. Recommended motion: / move fo approve the purchase of property at 2471 Lousetown Road
not to exceed appraised value or $12,000 whichever is less.

3. Prepared by: Gary Hames
Department: Capital Projects Telephone: (775) 847-0954

4. Staff summary: The property to the north of the Highlands Fire Station has been used for years
by the Fire Protection District and Property Owners association for storage of equipment. The
Fire District propane tanks, training facility and apparatus are all located on this property. It was
thought that this property was a portion of the Highlands Fire Station for decades. However,
when the County purchased that property it was identified as a separate parcel and NOT
inclusive of the fire station property. This section of property is instrumental to the security of
the County owned building, is only accessible through the fire station property and is needed to
provide space for county training,

This property is being sold by Elaine Craig of Coldwell Banker in Reno. She has contacted us
and is willing to sell us the property for $12,000 or appraised value. The appraisal is currently
underway and we recommend that it is purchased at not to exceed the $12,000 asking price or
appraised value, whichever is lower. County Manager Whitten has indicted that funding is
available through the Capital Projects fund. :

3. Supporting materials: Listing from The Craig Team of Coldwell Banker. Aerial image of
property to reflect the proximity to the fire station, community building and access.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Yes Fund: Capital Projects _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: General Fund/Capital Projects
@ A~ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action: :
[] Approved [
] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[

Agenda Item No.




Page 1 of 2

13001463376 Virginia City Highlands Type of Property 341
2/9/2014 Asking Price  [Original Price Sold Price
ACTIVE $12,000 14,000 Contract Date
DOM 135 2/3/2014 11/20/2013 Closing Date
DOMLS 134
Acreage 00304101 ﬁ ﬁ
Parcel# 1.18
Zoning E1 VCH
Assessment $207.12
Taxes $ 0.00
Zoning Category  Single Family
2471 Lousetown Road Price per Acre 10,1694
City Limits No
LOT # Subdividable No
89521 Permit
Associated Document Count o Water Rights No
BLM Grazing Rights  No
Sign on Property Yes
Qutbuildings No
Price/Acre 10,169.49
HOA Yes Assoc Fee § 150.00 Assoc FTrans ee 5200.00
MENITIES :
FENCING None TOPOGRAPHY Level
EXISTING SEWER/SEPTYIC None ACCESS ROAD Dirt
DOCUMENTS ON FILE None ADJOINS Street, Undeveloped Acre
SURFACE WATER None ACCESS TYPE Private Access
DOMESTIC WATER Need Well VIEW Mountain, Yes
CORNERS MARKED None CROPS None
UTILITIES AT SITE Nene LANDSCAPED None
LOT IMPROVEMENTS None EASEMENTS None
DEED RESTRICTIONS No ELECTRICITY Nane
HORSES Yes

Great level 1 acre iot on Lousetown directly behind the fire station.

e
. ﬁa}";\

Goy,

&

A,
(+4

SCHOOLS Gallagher, Hugh

Directions
MAP GRID

Virginia City
Virginia City

Cartwright Rd, and Lousetown

Showing Instructions Drive By

The Craig Team - (775) 829-5881
Coldwell Banker Select Reno - Office: (775)
5.00 OWNER(S) MAY SELL  Cash

4,
%ot %

http://nnrmls.paragonrels.com/publink/Report.aspx?outputtype=HTML&GUID=60dc79cf-f... 4/4/2014




Pictometry Online

Page 1 of

Fire Station in Highlands

Print Date: 04/04/2014
Image Date:05/12/2013
Level:Neighborhood

http://pol.pictometry.com/en-us/app/print.php?titie=Fire%20Station%ZOin%ZOI—ﬁghlands&d... 4/4/2014




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 15,2014 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required []

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on a workshop to discuss the proposed adoption of new
editions of the 2012 uniform codes, the 2012 Northern Nevada Amendments published by the
Northern Nevada Chapter of the International Code Council, and amendments to provide for specific
requirements for fire and building in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: I move to adopt the 2012 International codes and ask that the ordinance
making the changes be on the board’s next meeting.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The fire protection district and the building department are proposing to move to the 2012
editions of the International Fire Code, the International Building Code and other codes used in
Storey County and will present their proposed changes. The changes are contained in the ordinance
that is attached and that ordinance will be introduced at the board’s next meeting. The ordinance also
adopts the 2012 Northern Nevada Amendments (to those codes) published by the Northern Nevada
Chapter of the International Code Counsel that incorporate changes that surrounding jurisdictions
have agreed on. The text of previous editions of these codes has been incorporated into the Storey
County Code causing the code to become outdated as new editions are adopted. A more efficient
way is to not repeat the section in the Storey County unless a change in the text is required.
(Continued on next page)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance 14-255

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government
7. Legal review required: Yes' mmt Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

@Mounty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
L] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.




4, Staff summary continued:

(Note: The changes in code in the ordinance are shown with new text being italicized, deleted text
with strike-through, and new code sections that replace the deleted text in highli cllow after
the section.)

The changes are generally described as follows:

1. The ordinance deletes Storey County Code chapters 8.12 Fire Hazards, 8.16 Fire and
Explosive, and 8.20 Alarm Systems because the 2012 International Fire Code has newer language
that the fire protection district prefers.

2. Chapter 15.04 Buildings and Construction is being amended to adopt new international
2012 codes for fire, building and construction, and other codes. The specific building construction
standards for Storey County and fire district’s amendments to the 2012 International Fire Code
and the Wildland Urban Interface Code are included.

3. Chapter 15.08 Building Official is amended to add a section that creates a board of
appeals and uses the building official’s duties from the new editions of the building and residential
code.

4. Chapter 15.12 Permits is amended to change the definition of accessory structure to
accessory dwelling unit that is used in NRS and to makes the state engineer responsible for
enforcement as required in NRS.




Ordinance No. 14-255

Summary

An ordinance deleting Storey County Code chapters 8.12 Fire Hazards,

8.16 Fire and Explosive, and 8.20 Alarm Systems and amending chapter 15.04 Buildings and
Construction, to adopt new uniform codes for fire, building and construction, and amending
chapter 15.08 Building Official, and chapter 15.12 Permits and to make amendments to
the codes to provide for Storey County specific requirements.

Title

An ordinance deleting Storey County Code chapters 8.12 Fire Hazards,

8.16 Fire and Explosive, and 8.20 Alarm Systems and amending chapter 15.04 Buildings
and Construction to adopt new uniform codes including fire and, building and construction
and amending chapters 15.04, 15.08 Building Official, and 15.12 Permits to make
amendments to the codes for Storey County specific requirements
and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: Chapters 8.12, 8.16, and 8.20 are amended by deleting the following:

Draft 4-7-14




Draft 4-7-14




e%éess&e&s—&%eghg@%%he@m%—&#ﬂwﬁewﬁeﬁﬁm&ﬁﬂdiﬂg%heﬁfe—(mc

nent anthority)

Draft 4-7-14




Draft4-7-14




~(IFC[A]105.7.6

Fife alarm and detection systems and related equipment)

sheﬂﬁf—m—&ﬁ—)—fasha}eﬂ-(IFC sectlon 021 efmltmns)

Draft 4-7-14




Draft 4-7-14




SECTION II: Chapter 15.04, 15.08, and 15.12 are amended as follows:

Chapter 15.04
Buildings and Construction

Sections:

15.04.010 Buildins-and-construction standards-adeptedfor-the-county-of Storey: Adoption
of International and Uniform codes.

15.04.020 Adoption authority.

15.04.030 Modification.

15.04.040 Copies on file,

15.04.650 Construction standards adopted.

15.04.060 Building construction standards.

15.04.070 Electrical wiring in commercial buildings.

15.04.080 Fire department access and safety,

15.04.090 Vielation--Criminal penalty.

15.04.010 Building-and-eo §
of International and Uniform codes.
In order to regulate all matters relating to the construction, maintenance and safely of
buildings structures and property within the coumfy the boam’ pwsuanr fo NRS 244 3675 an'd
NRS 278.580 aa’opts the fo!lowrng code '

NRS 474470, the fire board should also adopt these:
A. The 2012 Inter rzanonal Fzre Code (IFC) and Appendzces B C, and D, wzzh the amendments
in section 15.04.08. f

adopted-by-+

Draft 4-7-14




C. The 2012 International Residential Code (IRC}, chapters 1 through 44, and AppendzceSA
B, C, G, H, J, K, and M, with the amend : _

D. The 2012 International Existing Building Code (IEBC), chap!e: s | through I 6.

E. The 2009 International Energy Conservation Code (IECC), chapters 1 through 6.

F. The 2012 International Fuel Gas Code (IFGC), chapters 1 through 7 and Appendices.

G. The 2012 Uniform Mechanical Code (UMC), chapters 2 through 17, and Appendices A, B,

C.
H. The 2012 International Mechanical Code (IMC), chapters 1 through 15, and Appendix A.

L. The 2012 Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC), chapters 2 through 17, and Appendices A, B, D,
E F, I and L.

J. The 2011 National Electrical Code (NEC hapters 1 through 9. WRS 2 78. 583
aufomatzcalb) approves new code. unless ‘coun) ,Sappmves within'60 days. )

K. The 2012 International Swimming Pool and Spa Code (ISPSC), chapters 1 through 11.

L. The 1997 Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings (UCADB).

M. The 2012 International Wildland Urban Interface Code, with the amendmeénts:i
15.04. 08.0_

N. The 2012 Northern Nevada Amendments published by the Northern Nevada Chapter of the
International Code Council. Copies available at www.nnice.org.

O. The 2011 Northern Nevada Energy Code Amendments published by the Northern Nevada
Chapter of the International Code Council, _

Where conflicts occur between the codes referenced above and the following amendments, the
amendments will apply.

Draft 4-7-14




3

2000)

15.04.020 Adoption authority.

The board of county commissioners may, by ordinance reselution, adopt later editions of the
applicable codes identified in Ssection 15.04.010 of this chapter, and shall-by must include in the
ordinance reselutionspeeify all the uniform codes in force. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.930 Modification.

The board county-connmissieness mayr-by-resefation; modify the uniform codes enumerated

in Ssection 15.04.010 of this chapter as-may-bereasonablynecessary te so that the codes
specifically apply the-same to the county, provided t4e sueh changes are in conformance with

applicable state laws. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.040 Copies on file.

Copies of the latest adopted codes per in Ssection 15.04.010 and "Standard Details and
Specifications for Public Works Construction” shalt must be kept in the offices of the public
works or building department offices. The latest editions of the Baiferm International Fire Code,
Uniform International Building Code, the International Wildland Urban Interface Code, and
NFPA Standards arete must be kept at the fire district offices departiment. (Ord. 172 § 1(part),
2000)

15.04.050 Construction standards adopted.

"Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction,” sponsored by the regional
transportation commission of Washoe County, city of Sparks, city of Reno, Carson City, and
the city of Yerington, is adopted as the construction standard for all public works and
development construction projects. Any updated issue of "Standard Specification for Public
Works Construction" will be automatically adopted by Storey County per this section. Other
standards and specifications may be adopted by the StereyCounty board ef-commissioners by
ordinance reselution specifying and identifying the saek standards. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.04.060 Storey County building construction standards.
AHof The following construction standards are required for all habitable structures regulared by
code within Storey County:

Draft 4-7-14




A. Snow load requirements.

All buildings construciion in-Sterey-Ceunty must have shall-be-required-toconfornrto-a

snow load capacity as follows:

Site Elevation (feet abuve sea fevely  Ground Snow load, Required (Pounds Per Square Foot)

9500 and above 142
0000 — 9499 114
6500 — 8999 90
6000 — 6499 70
5500 - 5999 50
Below 5500 20

B, Seismic zorne design requirentents.

2 LB C for commercial and industrial construction.

The seismic design site class for structures must be based on the Risk Category, and the
spectral response acceleration parameters in accordance with Chapler 16 of I.B. C and Chapter
200fASCE 7.

2 LR.C_for single-family residential structures;

The seismic design site class for single-family residential structures and siructures
accessory lo residential use is L2,

C. Wind speed design requirements.

Per the adopted 2012 Northern Nevada Amendments.

Ulrimate design wind speed for risk category [ structures is 105 mph Viir:

Ultimarte design wind speed [or risk caregory I/ structures is 1153 mph Vir:

Uiltimate design wind speed for category 11 and IV structures is 120 mph Viir.

Exposure Category is C. An allifude density reduction may not be taken.

The minimum basic wind speed (3-second gust) for Group R-2 and R-3 structyres is 100 mph,
Fxposure Category C.

D, Foundations.

. The foundation frost depth reguirement for all foundations is 24 " from bottom of fooiing
to level of finish grade.

2. Foundations exposed more than 2’ above the grade level nust be finished in natural
wood, native rock, brick, cultured sione, or splil face block.

3. The minimum foundation anchor bols reguirement is /8" diameter by 107 length or as
required fo obrain at least 7" of embedment in the concrete. Anchor bolls niust be spaced ro
sore than 487 on center. Al anchor bolis are 1o be equipped with 3 square x % " thick plate
washers.

£, Roofing requirements.

Fire retardant rogfing material s required per NRS 472.100. Al roofing maferials used nist
be listed by a nationally recognized testing agency with a Class A rating, unless otherwise
approved for indusirial or commercial use by the building official. AY rogfing materials must be
installed per manyfaciurers’ specifications. No wood shakes or shingles are allowed.

F. Storage ot unimproved lot.

Draft 4-7-14
10




No storage of any kind is allowed on any unimproved lot. Building materials and

consiriction equipnent may be located on a fot that has an active building permit for a single-
Jamily dwelling. No awtomobiles or RY type vehicles may be stored on a lof unii! a certificare of
occupancy or sqiely seal has been isswed Jor the single-family dwelling.

G. Temporary guarters during consiruction.

A temporary trailer permit may be issued ar the discretion of the buitding official for one
travel trailer or moltor home conrected 1o a perinanent waler source and sewer or seplic system,
as the owner s living guarters during construction of a single-family residence. The perimit is
imitially valid for no more than (80 days. If substantiof progress Iis completed on the permanent
residence, the butlding official may renew the permit jor an additional 180 days.

A Water wells,

Newly constructed water wells for domestic residential use are regquived to flow at a rate of
rot less than 2 gp.m. during the imitial I-hour flow rest fo meet the requirements for issuance of
a residential dwelling butiding permii. A water gualily fest report displaying fharl lhe waler is
S/ Jor arinking Is required prior to issuance of a residential dwelling building permit.

I Accessory structures.

A detached garage, shop, barn, greenhouse, or ofher structire that is considered accessory o
a single Jamily residence may be allowed o contain a tollet and sink pliumbed fo the residence s
werter supply and sewer/septic system, but is nor allowed fo contain a bathiub or shower.

J Drainage.

1. Roof drainage or supface storm-waier drainage from a struciture or developed lof miust
be controlled through measures approved by the building official, and must not cause adverse
1mpacts on neighboring or aajacent properiies.

2 For development of commercial or industrial lols or parcels of 5 acres or larger, or
development of residential subdivisions where the aggregate sum of lols or parcels is 5 acres or
larger, an engincered hydraulic analysis is required that displays that post development run-af
aring a 100 year storm event will not exceed pre-development run-off.

K Retaining walls.

Retaining walls constructed for slope stabilization that are grearer than 4 féet in height
regitire engineered design and a building perii.

A-Snowload Requirements:

Draft 4-7-14
11




E. No Dupllcatlon of Bulld ngs: Zoning classifications (E-1-VCH), (E-10-HR), and (E-40-
VR), of the Storey County zomng ordmance Chapter 17.40, shall not permit the same
architectural ¢levation design (regardless of exterior treatment and/or reversal of layout) be
approved within two thousand five hundred feet in all d]IcCtIOIlS of the proposed bulldmg lot.

months. (Ord 172 § I(part) 2000) (IRZ'_L

15.04.070 Electrical wiring in commercial buildings.

The electrical wiring in all commercial buildings in Storey County must be mstallcd in conduit
approved by the applicable code.
(Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Draft 4-7-14
' 12




15.04.080 Fire district requirements-department aceess-and-safety,
A. Approvedrumbers-or-addressesshall be-placedon The following amendments apply o the

International Fire Code:

2012 International Fire Code amendments,
Note: An underscore is used to indicate new or replacement language to the code. A strike
through is to indicate a deleted item.

IFC Section 102, Applicability:

102.3 Change of use or cccupancy, No change shall be made in the use or occupancy of any
structure that would place the structure in a different division of the same group or occupancy or
in a different group of occupancies, unless such structure is made to comply with the
requirements of this code and the International Building Code. Subject to the approval of the fire
code official, the use or occupancy of an existing structure shall be allowed to be changed and the
structure is allowed to be occupied for purposes in other groups without conforming to all the
requirements of this code and the International Building Code for those groups, provided the new
or proposed use is less hazardous, based on life and fire risk, than the existing use.

Change of ownership of the building shall require the building to come up to current Code
standards, per NAC 477.917 and adopted by the Nevada Pire Marshal.

102.7 Referenced Codes and Standards. The codes and standards referenced in this code shall

be-these-that-are-isted-in-Chapter-80_shall be the most current edition of the nationally recognized

standards unless otherwise designated by NAC 477.281, and such codes and standards shall be
considered part of the requirements of this code to the prescribed extent of cach such reference

and as further regulated in section 102.7 and 102.7.2.

TIEC Section 105, Permits:
103.1.1 Permits Required. Any property owner or authorized agent who intends to conduct an
operation or business, or install or modify systems and equipment which is regulated by this code,
or to cause any such work to be done, shall first make application fo the fire code official and

obtain the required permit. Permits required by this code shall be obtained from the Storey

County Firec Protection District, Fire Department construction permits will be required and issued

for Fire Sprinkler Systems, Detection/Notification Systems and Grading/Civil work, based on
fotal project valuation. See Table 105.1.1.

IFC Section 108, Board of Appeals:
Delete the entire section 108. (See section. 15.04:080(C))

IFC Section 109, Violations:
109.4 Violation Penalties. Unless a greater penalty is provided by Nevada Law, persons who
shell viclate a provision of this code or fail to comply with any of the code’s requirements thereef

or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in violation of the approved construction
documents or directive of the fire code official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions

of thls code are gulltv of a misdemeanor. %&H—b&gﬂ%ﬁ#@%&—ﬁ%@%@%ﬁ—p&%&b}e

Draft 4-7-14
13




IEC Section 111, Stop Work Order:

111.4 Failure to Comply, Any person who shall continues any work after having been served
with a stop work order, except seek the work as that person is directed to perform to remove a
violation or unsafe condition, sh e~-Hable ; H-Tameun a FROTE

than-famount]-delars is puilty of a rmsdemeanor

IFC Section 202, General Definitions:

HIGH-RISE BUILDING. A building with an occupied floor located more than 75 55 feet (22
868 16 764 mm) above the lowest level of fire department vehicle access.

Occupancy Classification,

Institutional Group I-1. This occupancy shall include buildings, structures or parts thereof for
more than 16 persons who reside on a 24-hour basis in a supervised environment and receive
custodial care. The persons receiving care are capable of self preservation. All portions of a care
facility which houses patients or residents which is classified by the State Board of Health as
‘Category 2.” {(defined as not being able to provide self preservation) and which has an occupant
load of more than [0 residents, is classified as an ‘I-1” occupancy classification. This group shall
include, but not be limited to, the folowing;

Alcohol and drug centers

Assisted living facilities

Congregate care facilities

Convalescent facilities

Group homes

Half-way houses

Residential board and custodial care facilities
Social rehabilitation facilities

Five or fewer persons receiving care: A facility such as the above with five or fewer persons
receiving such care shall be classified as Group R-3 or shall comply with the International
Residential Code provided an automatic sprinkler sysiem is installed in accordance with Section
903.3.1.3 or International Residential Code Section P2904,

Six to sixteen persons receiving care; A facility such as above, housing at least six and not more
than 16 persons receiving such care, shall be classified as Group R4,

Institutional Group I-4, day care facilities: This group shall include buildings and structures
occupied by more than five six persons of any age who receive custodial care for less than 24
hours by persons other than parents or guardians, refatives by bloed, marriage, or adoption, and in
a place other than the home of the person cared for. This group shall include, but not be limited
to, the following:

Adult day care
Child day care

Draft 4-7-14

14




Classification as Group E: A child day care facility that provides care for more than five six but
no more than 100 children 21/2 years or less of age, where the rooms in which the children are
cared for are located on a level of exit discharge serving such rooms and each of these child care
rooms has an exif door directly to the exterior, shall be classified as Group E.

Within a place of religious worship: Rooms and spaces within places of religious worship
providing such care during religious functions shall be classified as part of the primary
occupancy.

Five or fewer occupants receiving care: A facility having five six or fewer persons receiving
custodial care shall be classified as part of the primary occupancy.

Five or fewer occupants receiving care in a dwelling unit: A facility such as the above within a
dwelling unit and having five six or fewer persons receiving custodial care shall be classified as
Group R-3 occupancy or shall comply with the futernational Residential Code.

Residential Group R-1: Residential occupancies containing sleeping units where the occupants
are primarily transient in nature, including:

Boarding houses (transient) with more than 10 occupants

Brothels

Congregate living facilities (transient) with more than 10 occupants
Hotels (transient)

Motels (transient)

Residential Group R-3: Residential occupancies where the cccupants are primarily permanent in
nature and not classified as Group R-1, R-2, R~4 or L, including:

Boarding houses (non transient) with 16 or fewer occupants

Boarding houses (transient) with 10 or fewer occupants

Buildings that do not contain more than two dwelling units

Care facilities that provide accommodations for five six or fewer persons receiving care
Congregate living facilities (non transient) with 16 or fewer occupants

Congregate living facilitics (transient) with 10 or fewer occupants

Moderate-hazard storage, Group 8-1: Buildings occupied for storage uses that are not
classified as Group S-2, including, but not limited to, storage of the following:

Aerosols, Levels 2 and 3

Aircraft hangar (storage and repair)

Bags: cloth, burlap and paper

Bamboos and rattan

Baskets

Belting: canvas and leather

Books and paper in rolls or packs

Boots and shoes

Buttons, including cloth covered, pear! or bone
Cardboard and cardboard boxes

Draft 4-7-14
15




Clothing, woolen wearing apparel
Cordage

Pry-boatstorage-{indoor}

Fumiture

Fuars

Glues, mucilage, pastes and size
Grains

Horns and combs, other than cefluloid
Leather

Linoleum

Lumber

Motor vehicle repair garages complying with the maximum allowable quantities of hazardous
materials Zisted in Table 5003.1.1(1) (see Section 406.8 of the Infernational Building Code)
Photo engravings

Resilient flooring

Self-serve storage (mini-storage)
Silks

Soaps

Sugar

Tires, bulk storage of

Tobacco, cigars, cigarettes and snuff
Upholstery and mattresses

Wax candles

Low-hazard storage, Group S-2: Includes, among others, buildings used for the storage of
noncombustible materials such as products on wood pallets or in paper cartons with or without
single thickness divisions; or in paper wrappings. Such products are permitted to have a
negligible amount of plastic trim, such as knobs, handles or film wrapping. Storage uses shail
include, but not be limited to, storage of the following:

Asbestos

Beverages up to and including 16-percent alcohol in metal, glass or ceramic containers
Cement in bags

Chalk and crayons

Dairy products in non waxed coated paper containers

Dry boat storage (indoor)

Dry cell batteries

Electrical coils

Electrical motors

Empty cans

Food products

Foods in noncombustible containers

Fresh fruits and vegetables in non plastic trays or containers
Frozen foods

Glass

Glass bottles empty or filled with noncombustible liquids
Gypsum board

Inert pigments

Draft 4-7-14
16




Ivory

Meats

Metal cabinets

Metal desks with plastic tops and trim
Metal parts

Metals

Mirrors

Oil-filled and other types of distribution transformers
Parking garages both open and enclosed
Porcelain and pottery

Stoves

Talc and soap stones

Washers and dryers

IFC Section 305, Ignition Sources:
305.1 Clearance from ignition sources. Clearance between ignition sources, such as luminaries,
heaters, flame-producing devices and combustible materials, shall be no less than 10 feet and

shall be maintained in an approved manner.

IFC Section 401, General:
401.1 Scope. Reporting of emergencies, coordination with emergency response forces,
emergency plans, and procedures for managing or responding to emergencies shall comply with
the provisions of this section.

IFC Section 503, Fire Apparatus Access Roads:
503.2.4 Turning Radius The required turning radius of a fire apparatus access road shall be
determined by the fire code official. The outside radius of a fire apparatus access road shall be a
minimum of forty-five (45°). The inside radius of any turn shall not be less than thirty (30°) feet.

503.2.8 Driveways. Driveways intended for fire apparatus access shall be provided when any
portion of an exterior wall of the first story of a building is located more than one hundred fifty
(150°) feet from a fire apparatus access road. Driveways shall provide a minimum unobstructed
width of twelve (12”) feet and a mininmm unobstructed height of thirteen feet six inches (13°6”.)

Driveways in excess of one hundred fifty (150°) feet in length shail be provided with turnarounds.

Driveways in excess of two hundred (200°) feet in length and less than twenty feet (207) in width

shall be provided with turnouts in addition fo turnarounds.

503.2.9 Turnout. Turnouts shall be an all weather road surface at least 10 feet wide and 30 feet
long. Driveway turnouts shall be located as required by the fire code official.

IFC Section 505, Premises Identification:
505.1 Address numbers. New and existing buildings shall have approved address numbers,
building numbers or approved building identification placed in a position that is plainly legible
and visible from the street or road fronting the property. These numbers shall contrast with their

Draft 4-7-14
17




background. Where required by the fire code official, address numbers shall be provided in
additional approved locations to facilitate emergency response. Address numbers shall be Arabic

numbers or alphabet letters. Numbers shall be six (6) inches in height with a minimum of three-

quarters (3/4)} inch stroke for commercial structures under 30,000 square feet, and twelve (12)

inches in height with a minimum of a one and one half (1 1/2) inch stroke for commercial
structures exceeding 30,000 square feet. All suites shall be identified with either a letter or
number four (4) inches in height with a minimwm of one half (1/2) inch stroke. Numbers and or

letters shall be of a contrasting color and be readlly wsnble from the street. Numbers-shall-be-a
TG reheshigh AR h relb—Where access is by means

of a prlvate road and the building cannot be v1ewed from the public way, a monument pole or
other sign or means shall be used to identify the structure. Address numbers shall be maintained.

IFC Section 507, Fire Protection Water Sources:
507.5.1.2 Fire Hydrant Standards. All new or replacement fire hydranis shall meet the

requirement and standards of the Storey County Fire Protection District Policy.

IFC Section 508, Fire Command Center:
508.1 General. Where required by other sections of this code and in all buildings classified as
high-rise building by the International Building Code or wide-rise buildings which by Storey
County Fire Protection District definition, exceed 30,000 square feet and are a single story, a fire
command center for fire department operations shall be provided and shall comply with sections
508.1.1 through 508.1.5. Commercial structures less than 5,000 square feet will not require any
type of command room. Buildings that are a single structure, between 5.000 square feet and
30,000 square feet will require a command room which may be located within the structurein a
Iocation agreed upon between the fire district and the developer.

508.1.2 Separation.

The fire command center shall be separated from the remainder of the building by not less than
a 2-hour fire barrier constructed in accordance with Section 707 of the International Building
Code or horizontal assembly constructed in accordance with Section 711 of the International
Building Code, or both.

508.1.3 Size.
The fire command center shall be a minimum of 96 square feet with a minimum dimension of 8
feet.

508.1.5 Required features. The fire command center shall comply with NFPA 72 and shall
contain the following features:

1. The emergency voice/alarm communication system control unit.

2. The fire department communications system,

3. Fire detection and alarm system annunciator.

4. Annunciater unit visually indicating the location of the elevators and whether they are
operational.

5. Status indicators and controls for air distribution systems.

6. The fire-fighter’s control panel required by Section 909.16 for smoke control systems installed
in the building.

7. Controls for unlocking stairway doors simultaneously.

Draft 4-7-14
18




8. Sprinkler valve and water-flow detector display panels.
9. Emergency and standby power status indicators.

A talanmhane e A oy e o b o alanharo
¥ Saw v Bt VY oo d t

11, Fire pump status indicators.
12. Schematic building plans indicating the typical floor plan and detailing the building core,
means of egress, fire protection systems, {ire-fighting equipment and fire department access, and
the location of fire walls, fire barriers, fire partitions, smoke barriers and smoke partitions.

13. An approved Building Information Card that contains, but is not limited to, the following
information:

13.1. General building information that includes: property name, address, the number of
floors in the building (above and below grade), use and occupancy classification (for mixed uses,
identify the different types of occupancies on each floor), estimated building population (i.e., day,
night, weekend);

13.2. Building emergency contact information that includes: a list of the building’s
emergency contacts (e.g., building manager, building engineer, etc.) and their respective work
phone number, cell phone number, and e-mail address;

13.3. Building construction information that includes: the type of building construction {e.g.,
floors, walls, columms, and roof assembly);

13.4. Exit stair information that includes; number of exit stairs in the building, each exit stair
designation and floors served, location where each exit stair discharges, exit stairs that are
pressurized, exif staivs provided with emergency lighting, each exit stair that allows reentry, exit
stairs providing roof access; elevator information that includes: number of elevator banks,
elevator bank designation, elevator car numbers and respective floors that they serve, location of
elevator machine rooms, location of sky lobby, location of freight elevator banks;

13.5. Building services and system information that includes: location of mechanical rooms,
location of building management system, location and capacity of all fuel oil tanks, location of
emergency generator, location of natural gas service;

13.6. Fire protection system information that includes: locations of standpipes, location of
fire pump room, location of fire department connections, floors protected by automatic sprinklers,
location of different types of automatic sprinkler systems installed (e.g., dry, wet, pre-action,
etc.); and

13.7. Hazardous material information that includes: location of hazardous material, quantity
of hazardous material.

14. Work table.

15. Generator supervision devices, manual start and transfer features.

16. Public address system, where specifically required by other sections of this code.

17. Elevator fire recall switch in accordance with ASME A17.1,

18. Elevator emergency or standby power selector switch(es), where emergency or standby power
is provided.

19, Facility Fire Pre-Plan (2°x3’ laminated map) showing: Ingress Routes, Fgress Routes. Fire
Lanes, Power Shunt Trip location, Main Fire Alarm Control Panel location, Gas Shunt (must be
within 20’ of fire control room) location, Address location (must be 12" in height minimum and.
contrast in color from main color of building), Electrical Main Panel, All Sub Panel locations,
Fire Hydrant locations, Knox Box location, Fire Department Connection location, Post Indicator
Valve location {as required) and Outside Screw and Yolk (as required).

20. Disconnect. The main switch for disconnecting the utilify power and any alternate power
sources shall be in the fire command center, Switches shall be covered to prevent accidental
activation. Switches shall interrupt the public ufility power feeds and any alternate power sources

Draft 4-7-14

19




before entering the building, After the switch is operated, no live electrical panels. conductors, or
feeds within the premises shall remain energized excluding the emergency electrical circuits.

21. Main Fire Alarm Control Panel, shall be combination smoke/fire with a writable surface,

22. Gas Shunt {must be within 20 of fire control room.)

23. Knox Box.

24. Fire Department Connection.

235. Post Indicator Valve.

26. Outside Screw & Yolk.

27, In occupancies greater than 55° in height, a fire equipment cache room shall be provided

gvery S stories and stocked as specified by the department with jurisdiction. Fire cache room

* shall be provided and stocked per Storey County Fire request, for buildings or occupancies where

it is deemed necessary based on special hazards or square footage.

IFC Section 901, Fire Protection Systems:
901.6 Inspection, testing and maintenance. Fire detection, alarm, and extinguishing systems,
mechanical smoke exhaust systems, and smoke and heat vents and commercial kitchen hood
ventilation systems shall be maintained in an operative condition at all times, and shall be
replaced or repaired where defective. Non required fire protection systems and equipment shall be
mspected, tested and maintained or removed,

901.7 Systems out of service. Where a required fire protection system is out of service, the fire
department and the fire code official shall be notified immediately and, where required by the fire
code official, the building shall either be evacuated or an approved fire watch shall be provided
for all occupants left unprotected by the shutdown until the fire protection system has been
returned to service. [n the event that the service/maintenance contract for any fire protection
system is canceled or not renewed, the fire code official shall be notified by the
service/maintenance contractor within 24 hours.

Where utilized, fire watches shall be provided with at least one approved means for notification
of the fire department and their only duty shall be to perform constant patrols of the protected
premises and keep watch for fires.

IFC Section 963, Automatic Sprinkler Systems:
903.2 Where required. Approved automatic sprinkler systems in new buildings and structures
shall be provided in the locations described in Sections 903.2.1 through 903.2.12, Table 903.2.1.

Exception: Spaces or areas in telecommunications buildings used exclusively for

telecommunications equipment, associated electrical power distribution equipment, batteries
and standby engines, provided those spaces or areas are equipped throughout  with an automatic
smoke detection system in accordance with Section 907.2 and are separated from the remainder
of the building by not less than [-hour fire barriers constructed in accordance with Section 707
of the International Building Code or not less than 2-hour horizontal assemblies constructed in
accordance with Section 711 of the International Building Code, or both.

Draft 4-7-14
20




Table 903.2.12
Required Automatic Sprinklers by Fire Area, Response Time and Height
ForA,B,E,F,H. L M, $ and U QOccupancies
Sprinklers are required when any one of the listed conditions is met.

Fire Jurisdiction Fire Area™® Heightd Response Time
Carson City Fire >3000 square fegtt 3 stories or greater -
Fast Fork Fire Protection Distict - . .
-4
{Douglas County) 5000 square feet 3 stones or greater -

7 stories and a basement or

North Lake T i tect istri >3 £ .
orth Lake Tahoe Fire Protection Diserict 3000 square fegt 3 stories or greater

North Lyon Fire Protection District >5000 square feet 3 stories or greater -
Reno Fire Department >5000 square feet 3 stories or greater -
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District
and »5000 square feet 3 stories or greater -
Sierra Fire Protection Diswict

Sparks Fire Deparmment »5000 square feet 3 stories or greater Over 6 minutes

Storev Fire Department =5000 square feet 2 stortes a?d & basement o -

3 stories or greater
Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District All
(Douglas County)} : - -

a. This table is in addition to any other automatic sprinkler requirements in this code.

b. Fire areas may be separated according to IBC 707.3.10.

¢. Any addition or remodel that increases the fire area will be included in the caleulation for the total square footage.

d. Airport towers and open parking garages complying with IBC 406.5 are exempt from this table.

¢.S-1and 8-2 occupancies are exempt from this table.

f A one-time increase in the fire area is permitted provided said increase is < 50% of the structure's existing
permitted fire area square footage.

g. A one-time increase of 360 square feet of fire areais permitted.

h. Automatic fire detection system installed throughout and connected to a central station fire alarm company canbe
substituted for automatic sprinkler system.

903.2.3 Group E. An automatic sprinkler system shall be provided for Group E occupancies as
follows:

1. Throughout all Group E fire areas greater than 12,000 square feet (1115 m2) in area.

2. Throughout every portion of educational buildings below the lowest level of exit discharge
serving that portion of the building.

Exception: An aufomatic sprinkler system is not required in any arca below the lowest
level of exit discharge serving that area where every classroom throughout the building
has at least one exterior exif door at ground level. In high schools where automatic fire
sprinkler systems are provided, the automatic fire sprinkler systems for the automotive
and woodworking shops must be designed to Ordinary Hazard, Group 1 automatic fire
sprinkler systems criferia.

1
i
\
1
i
|
|
‘

IFC Section 910, Smoke and Heat Removal:

Draft 4-7-14
21




910.3.2.2 Sprinklered buildings. Where installed in buildings equipped with an approved
automatic sprinkler system, smoke and heat vents shall be designed to operate.

910.3.2.2.1 Control mode sprinkler system. Smoke and heat vents installed in areas of
buildings with a confrol mode sprinkler system shall have operating elements with a higher
temperature classification than the automatic fire sprinklers in accordance with NFPA 13.

910.3.2.2.2 Early suppression fast-response (ESFR) sprinkler system. Smoke and heat vents
installed in areas of buildings with early suppression fagt-response (ESFR) sprinklers shall be
equipped with a standard-response operating mechanism with a minimum temperature rating of
360°F (182°C) or 100°F (56°C) above the operating temperature of the sprinklers, whichever is

higher.

IFC Section 913, Fire Pumps:
913.4 Valve supervision. Where provided, the fire pump suction, discharge and bypass valves,
and the isolation valves on the backflow prevention device or assembly shall be supervised open

by one of the following methods,

1. Central-station, proprictary or remote-station signaling service.
2. Local signaling service that will cause the sounding of an audible signal at a constantly
attended location.

3Leclkingvalves-open-

Draft 4-7-14
22




IFC Section 1016, Exit Access Travel Distance:

TABLE 10186.2
EXIT ACCESS TRAVEL DISTANCE®

OCCUPANCY SPRINKLER SYSTEM (feet) W?ﬁsﬁéﬁ%&?

A E.F-1. M, R 5-1 200 2500
I-1 Not Permitted 250¢

B 200 300=
F-2,5-2, U 300 400¢
H-1 Not Permitted 75¢

H-2 Not Permitted 100¢

H-3 Mot Pemnitted 150°

H- Not Permitted 175¢

H-3 Not Permitted 200¢

12, 1-3, 14 Not Permitted 2000

For 5. 1 foot = 304.8 mm.

a. See the following sections for modifications io exit access travel distance requirements:
Section 402.8: Far the distance limitation in malls.

Section 404.9: For the distance fimitation through an atrium space.

Section 407 .4: For the distance limitation in Group I-2.

Sections 408.6.1 and 408.8.1: For the distance limitations in Group [-3.
Section 411.4: For the distance limitation in Special Amusement Buildings.
Section 1013.4: For the distance limitation in refrigeration machinery rooms.
Section 1015.9: For the distance limitation in refrigerated rooms and spaces.
Section 1016.4: For increased fimitation in Groups F-1.and 8-1.

Section 1021.2: For buildings with one exit.

Section 1028.7: For increased limitation in assembly seating.

Section 1028.7: For increased limitation for assembly open-air seating.
Section 3103.4: For temporary structures.

Section 3104.9: For pedestrian walkways.

b. Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section
803.3.1.1 0r 903.3.1.2. See Section 903 for occupancies where automatic sprinkler systems in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.2 are permitted.

c. Buildings equipped throughout with an automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 203.3.1.1

1016.4 Group F-1 and 8-1 increase, The maximum exit access travel distance shall be 400 feet
122 m) in Group F-1 or 8-1 occupancies where all of the following are met:

1. The portion of the building classified as Group F-1 or §-1 is limited to one story in height,
and

2. The minimum height from the finished floor to the bottom of the ceiling or roof slab or deck
is 24 feet (7315 mm), and

Draft 4-7-14
23




3. The building is equipped throughout with an automatic fire sprinkler system in  accordance
with Section 903.3.1.1.

IFC Chapter 11, Construction Requirements for Existing Buildings:
Delete entire chapter 11.

IFC Section 2809, Exterior Storage of Finished Lumber Products:
2809.1 General. Exterior storage of finished lumber products, fire wood, chips, hogged
material and associated raw products shall comply with Sections 2809.1 through 2809.5.

IFC Section 5601, Explosives and Fireworks:
5601.1.3 Fireworks. The possession, manufacture, storage, sale, handling and use of fireworks
are prohibited.

Exceptions:

1. Storage and handling of fireworks as allowed in Section 5604.
2. Manufacture, assembly and testing of fireworks as allowed in Section 5603.
3. The use of fireworks for fireworks displays as allowed in Section 5608.

4 ZWSREE = o4 a2 W 1o A1y = o y o LT a

IFC Section 6101, Liquefied Petroleum Gases:

6101.1 Scope. Storage, handling and transportation of liquefied petroleum gas (LP-gas) and the
installation of LP-gas equipment pertinent to systems for such uses shall comply with this chapter
and NFPA 58. Propertics of LP-gases shall be determined in accordance with Appendix B of
NFPA 58. In the event of a conflict between any provision in this chapter and the regulations of

the Board for the Regulation of Liquefied Petroleum Gas, the regulations of the Board take
precedence.

The following lnternational Fire Code appendices are amended.:

Appendix B — Fire Flow Requirements.

Section B105, Fire-flow Requirements for Buildings:
B105.2 Buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings.
The minimum fire-flow and flow duration for buildings other than one- and two-family dwellings
shall be as specified in Table B105.1.

Exception: A reduction in required fire-flow of up to 75 50 percent, as approved, is allowed
when the building is provided with an approved automatic sprinkler system installed in
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2, The resulting fire-flow shall  not be less than
1,500 gallons per minute (5678 L/min) for the prescribed duration as specified in Table B105.1.

Draft 4-7-14
24




B. The following amendments apply to the 2012 Imternational Wildland Urban Interface Code:

WUI Section 101.2, Scope and General Requirements:
101.2 Scope. The provisions of this-eede the Wildland Urban Interface Code shall apply to the
construction, alteration, movement, repair, maintenance and use of any building, structure or

premises and to the management of fueis on undeveloped lots and on unmodified portions of
large lots within the wildland-urban interface areas in this jurisdiction,

Buildings or conditions in existence at the time of the adoption of this code are allowed to have
their use or occupancy continued, if such condition, use or cccupancy was legal at the time of the
adoption of this code, provided such continued use does not constitute a distinct danger to life or

property.

Buildings or structures moved into or within the jurisdiction shall comply with the provisions of
this code for new buildings or structures.

WU1 Sectmn 106 Appeals'

WUI Section 302, Wildland-Urban Interface Area Designations:
302.3 Review of wildland-urban interface areas. The code official shall reevaluate and
recommend modification to the wildland-urban inferface areas_contained in the Community
W1ld1and Protectlon Plan in accordance w1th Sectlon 302.1 ena-three—yearbasis-ormere
: : a3 deemed necessary by the code official.

WUI Section 502, Fire Hazard Severity:
502.1 General. The fire hazard severity of building sites for all buildings hereafter constructed,
modified or relocated into wildland-urban interface areas shall be established in accordance with
Table 502.1 —See-alse or Appendix C.

WUI Section 504, Class 1 Ignition-resistant Construction:
504.2 Roof covering. Roofs shall have a Class A roof assembly. For roof coverings where the
profile allows a space between the roof covering and roof decking, the space at the eave ends
shall be fire stopped to preclude entry of flames or embers, or have one layer of 72-pound (32.4
kg) mineral-surfaced, non perforated cap sheet complying with ASTM D 3909 installed over the

Draft 4-7-14
25




combustible decking. Roof coverings consisting of shakes or shingles made of wood are not

approved as part of any Class A roof assembly.

504.10.1 Vent locations. Attic ventilation openings shall not be located in soffits, in eave
overhangs, between rafters at caves, or in other overhang areas. Gable end and dormer vents shall
be located at least 10 feet (3048 mm) from lot lines. Under floor ventilation openings shall be
located as close to grade as practical.

Exception: Vents designed and approved to prevent flame or ember penetration into the
structure may be located in soffits, in eave overhangs, between rafters at eaves, or in other

gverhang areas.

WUI Section 505, Class 2 Ignition-resistant Construction:
505.10.1 Vent locations, Attic ventilation openings shall not be located in soffits, in eave
overhangs, between rafters at caves, or in other overhang areas. Gable end and dormer vents shall
be located at least 10 feet (3048 mm) from lot lines. Under floor ventilation openings shall be
located as close to grade as practical.

Exception: Vents designed and approved to prevent flame or ember penetration into the
structure may be located in soffits, in eave overhangs. between rafters at eaves. orin  other

overhang areas,

WUI Section 602, Automatic Sprlnkler Systems.
602.1 General Afi-ap

WUI Section 603, Defensible Space:
603.2.1 Responsible party. Persons owning, leasing, controlling, operating or maintaining
buildings or structures requiring defensible spaces are responsible for modifying or removing non
fire-resistive vegetation on the property owned, leased or controlled by said person.

603.2.1.1 Adjacent land. Property owners of land that is directly adjacent to property containing

buildings or structures requiring defensible space are responsible for modifying or removing non

fire-resistive vegetation on said property.

603.2.2 Trees. Trees are allowed within the defensible space, provided the horizontal distance
between crowns of adjacent trees and crowns of trees and structures, overhead electrical facilities
or unmodified fuel is not less than 10 feet (3048 mm) or an acceptable distance as determined

by the code official.”

WUI Section 604, Maintenance of Defensible Space:
604.4 Trees. Tree crowns extending to within 10 feet (3048 mm) of any structure shall be pruned
to maintain a minimum herizental clearance of 10 feet (3048 mm) or an acceptable distance as
determined by the code official. Tree crowns within the defensible space shall be pruned to

Draft 4-7-14
26




remove limbs located less than & 10 feet (1829 3048 mm) above the ground surface adjacent to
the trees; or an acceptable distance as determined by the code official

604.4.1 Chimney clearance. Portions of tree crowns that extend to within 10 feet (3048 mm) of
the outlet of a chimney shall be pruned to maintain a minimum herizental clearance of 10 feet
(3048 mm).

WUI Section 607, Storage of Firewood and Combustible Materials:
607.1 General. Firewood and combustible material shall not be stored in unenclosed spaces
beneath buildings or structures, or on decks or under eaves, canopies or other projections or
overhangs. When required by the code official, storage of firewood and combustible material
stored in the defensible space shall be located a minimum of 28 30 feet (6096 mm) from
structures and separated from the crown of trees by a minimum horizontal distance of 15 feet
(4572 mm).

Appendix B, Vegetation Management Plan.

WUI Section B101, General:
B101.1 Scope. Where required vegetation management plans shall be submitted to the code
official and the State Forester Firewarden for review and approval as part of the plans required for
a permit.

B101.2 Plan content. Vegetation management plans shall describe all actions that will be taken
to prevent a fire from being carried toward or away from the building. A vegetation management
plan shall include at Icast the following information:

1. A copy of the-site defensible space plan.

2. Methods and timetables for controlling, changing or modifying areas on the property.
Elements of the plan shall include removal of slash, snags, vegetation that may grow into
overhead electrical lines, other ground fuels, ladder fuels and dead trees, and the thinning
of live trees.

3. A plan for maintaining the proposed fuel-reduction measures.

WUI Section B102, Defensible Space Plans,
B102.1 General. Where required, defensible space plans must be submitted to the code official

for review and approval ag part of the plans required for a permit.

B102.2 Plan content. A defensible space plan shall include at least the following information:

1. Property boundaries.
2. Current and proposed structures on the property.

3. Trees and vegetation taller than 3 feet in height.
4. Individual plant or brush fields 20 square feet or larger in area.

5. Tree drip lines.

6. Roads and driveways in abutting thg property.

C. All sections of the International Fire Code and the International Wildland Urban Interface

Draft 4-7-14
27




Code adopted in section 15.04.010 that refer to a board of appeals are amended and in order to
hear and decide the appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by the fire chief the
Jfollowing process will be used:

1. Any person dissatisfied with the decisions of the fire chief as applied to the person’s case
may appeal the decision in writing to the state fire marshal for relief within thirty days from the
decision of the fire chief. The state fire marshal must make a decision to uphold or reverse the
decision of the building official. The decision of the state fire marshal is final and the fire chief
must implement the decision.

2. If the state fire marshal agrees with the fire chief the person may pursue his legal
remedies before the appropriate tribunal.

aﬁp%eved—by—the—ﬁre—eh&e%(lFC App

Draft 4-7-14




WUI section’

15.04.0990 Violation--Criminal penalty.

Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a
misdemeanor. (Ord. 13-249, 2013; Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Chapter 15.08
Building Official

Sections:

15.08.010 Office created.

15.08.020 Appointment.

15.08.040 Abatement of dangerous buildings.
15.08.050 Private practice restricted.
15.08.060 Appeal from decisions.

15.08.0680 Violation--Penalty.

15.08.010 Office created.
There is created a building department with an official in charge known as th
building official, pursuant to NRS 278.570. (IBC 103.1, IRERI103:1; Creation

agency,)
(Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.08.020 Appointment.

The building official must shatt be appointed by the chairman of the board of county
commissioners with the approval of a majority of the board efcounty-commissioners. (IBC
103.2, IRC R103.2; Appointment)

(Oxd. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Draft 4-7-14
29




Deputies)

>

R103:3

Draft 4-7-14

30



building construction-ordinances;—~(IBC 115/ IRER114, Stop work order)

IRC'R109.1.5, Other inspections)

15.08.040 Abatement of dangerous buildings.

All buildings or portions thereof which are determined after inspection by the building official
to be dangerous as defined in the approved codes are declared to be public nuisances and must
shall be abated by repair, rehabilitation, demolition or removal in accordance with the procedures
of the approved codes. The building official must file and serve on the record owner and on the
property a notice and order required by the Uniform Code for the Abatement of Dangerous
Buildings. If the building official determines that there is a violation of code the building official
must refer the matter to the district attorney's office.

If the building or structure is in a condition that is immediately dangerous to life, limb,
property, or safety of the public or ils occupants the building official may order it to be vacated. If
the notice and order requires demolition, the district fire chief and the sheriff must agree with the
dezermznanon and szgrz the notzce as required by NRS 244.3601. maﬁeeemmend—eeﬁeeﬁ%

dlfferent ed )

15.08.050 Private practice restricted.

Any person holding the office of county building official, inspector, or staff is prohibited from
engaging in the private practice of architecture, design, or structural engineering of buildings and
projects, whether zhe saeh design and planning concerns new construction or renovation of
existing buildings within the county. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.08.060 Appeal from decisions.
Section 112 of the IBC and IRC is replaced by the folfowing language.

A In order to hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or delerminations made by the
building official about the application and interpretation of the currently adopted building and
uniform codes, there is created a building board of qupeals consisting of members who are
qualified by experience and training (o pass on marters perlaining lo building construction and

Jire-safen, who are not emplavees of the jurisdiction. The board may noi waive the reguirements
of this code. The building official is an ex officio member of the board and will act as iis
secretary, but has no vole on any matier before the board The board gf appeals appointed by the

Draft 4-7-14
31




board will convene when an appeal has been filed The board may adopt riles of procedure Jor
CORAUCting ity business, and miist render all decisions and findings in writing fo the appellant
With a duplicate copy fo the bullding official

B. The board of appeals has no authority to interpret the adminisiraiive provisions of 1his
codle excepl Jor decisions of the building official about modifications, alternative materials,
alrernate designs, methodls of construction and uncovering work jor inspections.

C The board of county commissioners must appolat five members fo the butlding board of
appedls, one of whom must be an architect or engineer ficensed by the State of Nevada, one gf
whom must be a general contractor ficensed by the State of Nevada, one of whom must be a

JEFSOR WITA experience as a jive prolféction professiondl, one of whom must represent the
nsurance ndussy, and one of whom skhould represent the public at large.

L. The terms jfor all board members are for a period of two years. If a posilion becomes
vacanl jor any reason, the vacancy mist be fifled for the duration of the unexpired term of the
member by a majority vole of the board,

D Any individual may qppeal an order, decision or defermination made by the building
official, except as limited by section B above, o the board of appeals by filing a written
notification of appeal with the secrefary 1o the board of qppeals within 10 working days of the
decision. The board of appeals must fiold a hearing within 30 days from the receipt of the written
notice of appeal unless the appellant agrees fo an extension of the time limit. [ the applicant has
roL submitted writien notificarion of appeal within the lime frame, 1he action of the building
official Is final,

E. Al hearings on appeal pursuant to 1his section are open to the public. A/l written materials
introdhiced must be identified Jor the record, and the board may reguest the produciion of
records and the appearance Qf persons necessary Jjor their deliberations. The rechinical rules of
evidence do rolf apply. Any evidence presented to the board of qppedals musy be relevant 1o te
issue before the board

K. A1 the conclusion of the hearing the board of appeals miust rule within 20 days fiom the
date of the hearing and state s findings and recommendations on the appeal.

Alternative

All sections of the codes adopted in section 15.04.010, other than the International Fire Code
and the International Wildland Urban Interface Code, that refer to a board of appeals ave
amended and in ovder to hear and decide the appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations
made by the building official using the codes, the following process will be used.

A. Any person dissatisfied with the actions of the building official as applied to his or her
case may apply to the county manager plenning-eemmission for relief within thirty days from
the decision of the building official. The county manager must make a decision to uphold or
reverse the decision of the building official. plenningcommissionshall-considerthesame-at-its
nextregular-meeting—The-planning commission-may-makerecommendations-to-the-beard-of
COTITISHONErs;

B. In the event the county manager planning-commissien concurs with the building official,
such the person shatthave has thirty days from the date of the decision of the county manager

plamiag comtission to present a wrilten appeal the-application to the board efceunty

Draft 4-7-14
32




eeims%eﬂefs who may uphold or overrule any the decisions of the county manager planning
: , at which time the person may pursue his legal
remedles before the apprOpnatc tribunal, (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.08.080 Violation--Penalty.
Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this chapter;-enforeed-by-the
building official-or-his/her-staff; is guilty of a misdemeanor. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Chapter 15.12
Building Permits

General Provisions for Construction
Sections:
15.12.010 Building permit required.
15.12.020 Application contents and fee.
15.12.030 Expiration-by Hmitation--Reapplication procedures.
15.12.040 Nontransferability.
15.12.050 Number permitted to be issued.

- . sys
W

Residential Construction Requirements
15.12.080 Permits for septic system installation and well drilling required.
15.12.090 Water source required.
15.12.092 Domestic use and purpose defined.
15.12,094 Accessory structure defined.
15.12.096 Domestic use limit.
15.12.099 Tampering and penalty.
15.12.100 Sewage disposal system required.

Draft 4-7-14
33




15.12.140 Mobile homes and manufactured structures.
15.12.150 Violaticn—Penalty,

General Provisions for Construction

15.12.010 Building permit required.

Any owner or authorized agent who intends to construct, enlarge, aller, repair, move,
demolish, or change the occupancy of a building or structure, or mobile, manufactured or
modular home for human habitation, or to evect, install, enlarge, alter, repair, remove, convert or
replace any electrical, gas, mechanical or plumbing system, the installation of which is regulated
by this code, or cause any of this work to be done, must first make application lo the building
offi czal and obfam the reqwred permil.

(Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.12.020 Application contents and fee.
A. The application for a building permit shalt must be made on saeh-forms as-are provided by

the bulldmg official and &haﬂ must conta' the following information: (IRC RlOS 3j‘f;’- ADE

for permit,: IB 07 Submittal ¢
1. Name and address of apphcan
2. Identify and describe the work to be covered by the permit. Natare-andlocation-ofwork;
3. Primary contractor's name, address and Nevada state license number;
34, If submitted under NAC 624 as an owner-builder. A written acknowledgement of the

Owner-Buildering Restriction Statement per NRS 278.573;

5. A description of the land on which the proposed work is to be done by legal description,
sireet address, or similar description that will readily identify and definitely locate the proposed
work.

6. The intended use and occupancy of the proposed work.

7. Any construction documents or other information required by code.

5 8, Subcontractor's name, address and Nevada state license number;

6 9. Residential designer, address and Nevada state license number;

72 10. Architect's name, address and Nevada state license number;

8 11. Engineer's name, address and Nevada state license number;

9 2. Cost of work, based on the retail price or a contractor's price for such work;

10 13. Date the work is to commence and the estimated date of completion.

B. Applications for building permits shall must? be accompanied by sueh the fees as-may-be

Draft 4-7-14
34




established by resolution of the board elf—ee&a{—y—eemimeﬂefs which resolutions are on file in
the county building department. (IRC 108:1;IBC 109:1 Payment of fees)
(Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.12.030 Expiration-by-Hmitation—Reapplication procedures.

huﬂfkeé—eigh%dﬂ{ﬁ—{-he—peﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ—b&md" (IRC 105 5.IBC 105 5;Exp1r i) A new
permit shall must be obtained before the work can be recommenced at a fee of one-half of the
amount required for the original permit, provided no changes have been made or will be made in
the original application and plans are provided, further, that sueh the suspension of work has not
exceeded one year. {Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.12.040 Nontransferability.

All permits shall-be are nontransferable.

A. Fees for building permits for-construetion that have been issued shalt may not be
transferedable to a new owner or a new project location;

B. Fees for permits issueds for a specific project or scope of work shall may not be
transferred to able-fer-another project or and change of scope of work by the same owner. (Ord.
172 § 1(part), 2000)

Draft 4-7-14
35




IBC 105 1 Perrmts Requlred)

Residential Construction Requirements

15, 12 080 Permits for septic system mstallatlon and well drlllmg requlred

; A permit must be
obtained from the county building department before a person may drill a well and from the state
division of health before a person msta[ls a sepnc system or does any work in prepamrzon Jor the
well or septic system. enttor-an o A

(Ord. 172 § I(part), 2000)

15.12.090 Water source required.

Ne 4 building permit for-any-constructionshall may not be issued until the applicant has
provided an adequate source of water {it for human consumption, either by drilling a well on the
premises or by water being piped in through a public or private utility designed for the
transportation of water. A “wiell serve letter” must be issued by that public or private utility

Draft 4-7-14
36




designed for transportation and deliverance of water and be submitted to the building department
with the permit application. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

Mﬁww&m%we—{&é%%%%

A. An attacked accessory dwelling anit is a portion of or an addition to a single-family
main dwelling that is designed o be used as a separale and independent dwelling unil. An
attached accessory dwelling unitf includes, at a minimum, permanent kircken and bathroom (l.e.
a toilet) facilities, but may also include living, sieeping, and eating facllities, all separated from
the main unit by walls or ceilings and accessed through a lockable exterior or interior door.
Converting part of. or adding on lo, an existing single-family main dwelling may create an
attached accessory dwelling. To be considered attackhed, the accessory dwelling unit imust abut
(7e. be on the opposite side of a wall or celling) the habitable space of the main dwelling, or the
cetling of a garage attached to the main dwelling. Incidental and accessory features such as
rrellises, decks, patios, breezeways, or tool sheds will not be considered as establishing an
attached dwelling unit. Typical uses include guest rooms, guest apariments and "granny jlais.”

B. A detached accessory dwelling unit refers o a dwelling unit on the same lol as the
main dwelling unit. but which is physically separated from the main dwelling unit. A deiached
accessory dwelling unit is designed and configured to provide independent living facilities for
one or more persons, and mcludes, at @ minimun, permanent fitchen and bathroom (i.e. a toiley

Jactities, but which may also include living, sleeping, and eating facilities. Typical uses include
gresthouses, second uniis, ‘granny flals” and carelaker’s guarlers.

C A detuched accessory structure refers fo a building or siructure on the same lot as the
piain residential structure and devoted to a use incidental fo that main residential structure. A
detached accessory structure is not designed, configured, or used for human habitation. The
detached accessory structure may be connected to water and waslewater sysiems subject (o he
recordation of a deed restriction prokibiting the use of the structure as a dwelling wnil.
Installation of both a kitchen and a toiler in a detached accessory structure requires the structure

Draft 4-7-14
37




o be considered a dwelling unit and subject to the accessory adwelling unit provisions. Tipical
uses inclide storage buildings and sheds, barns and delfackhed garages.

Alernative
A. An accessory dwelling urit means an atiached or defached dwelling unit determined by
planning staff'to be accessory fo the permitted principal use which:
1. FProvides complete, independent living facilities jor one or more persons, including
PEFHanent provisions Jor living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation,
2. 15 intended for occuparion by paying or non-paying guests, members of the family, or
person enployed on the premises.
J. 1y located on the same parcel as the permitied principal use.
B. A detached accessory structure refers fo a burlding or siructire on the same lo? as the
main residential structure and devolted 10 a use incidenial to that main residential stricture and
i not designed, configured, or used jor hiuman habitation.

15.12.096 Domestic use limit.
If the development and use of underground waler from a well for an accessory dwelling unit of
a single famzbz dwellmg as a’ef ned in Sectzon 1 5.12.094, guahf es as a domestic use or domesnc

A The owner of the weII must: shall-at-histherexpense:
1. Obtain approval for that use from the board Board-of Sterey-County-Commisstoners

after a report and recommendation by the planning commission; and

2. Install 2 water meter, af owner’s expense, capable of measuring the total withdrawal of
water from the well; and

3. Ensure the total withdrawal of water from the well does not exceed two acre-feet per

year; an_d

' B. The board or m* a’es*zgnee mmt reporz fhe appmval of the accessoty structure ona form
provided by the state engmeer

Draft 4-7-14

38




F. The date of priority for the use of the domestic well to supply water to any accessory
structure is the date of approval received by the owner of the well from board Besrd-e£Storey

@WWMM%W%%WMM&M

15.12.099 Tampering andpenalty,

A. Tampering: No one except an employee or representative of Storey County or the State of
Nevada may shall at any time or in any manner operate or alter a water meter or otherwise
interfere with a meter or its connections,

arseparate-offense-under-this-division-and-punishable-as-sueh. (Ord. No. 11-236, § 1, 8-2-2011)

15.12.100 Sewage disposal system required.

Ne 4 building permit shalt may rot be issued unless the applicant has {irst installed a suitable
sewerage disposal system meeting all applicable governmental standards;-ef or the owner must
provide a "will serve letter" from a pubhc or private sewage p 'hty des1gned to transport
and process raw sewageIRC'R111, IBC 1121 Connection of :

Draft 4-7-14
39




{9&&4—7—2—@—%{1&&{4}—2@(}9} (IRC R104.10, IBC 104. 10 Modlﬁcatlons g1ves authonty to buﬂdmg
official)

15.12.140 Mobile homes and manufactured structures.

Ne 4 permanent building, modular structure or mobile home may not shattbe moved into or
* within the county, nor shath-be erected or installed, without being issued dhetssuanee-of a
building permit therefer. No-sueh The building permit may not shall be issued until the applicant
has first obtained a separate building permit for the installation of a continuous perimeter
concrete footing and a continuous masonry stem wall constructed in conformance with applicable
ordinances, building codes, and state laws, and has installed a water and sewer system meetmg all
applicable government standards. Such buﬂdlngs or mobile homes m
use and zoning regulations applicable. (IRC Appendlx E AM ,nufac "
Moved strictires) (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

15.12.150 Violation--Penalty.
Any person, firm, or corporation violating any provision of this chapter is guilty of a
misdemeanocr. (Ord. 172 § 1(part), 2000)

SECTION II: This ordinance will become effective on July 1, 2014,

Proposed on , 2014,

Draft 4-7-14
40




by Commissioner

Passed on , 2014,
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners
Nays: Commissioners
Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest;

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on July 1, 2014.

Draft 4-7-14
41




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 15,2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 03/28/2014 for $367,647.69
and Accounts Payable date 04/04/2014 for $254,057.20 and $3,052.72

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@Munty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved f
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

v bl

Agenda Item No.




ATANGTIEL

HITTOYLINOD

YIANOISSTWHOD YEANQISSIHHOD NYWHEIVHO

PEISUOTSETUWOD JO pPIvod Ajune) Asaojs oyl Aq peaoczddy

69 L¥9LSE PPSBINAS T TEIOL
60°550 92 1I030NPAg 03 ISISURIL ISE(} TRICL
00-98c'g P9Ttd d8Q 210 UG peaIsIsUBA] SUOTlonpag sshoTdum Telor
p0'005'212 ta1sodsg a0satg vadordum Tel0L
SZ TITI0°1T sgoayy asAordug Tejon
YL LTO'TS PBRAYD Iononpad TEIOL
LS LLY €D 159dL3d I0J IADIFBURAL IISN (RIOL
Junowy aafeq # p=a # da
/4 duy fL.cllin]
B L 9 8§ v £ g 1 :sdooxn TroIAegq ¥T/ET/E0 191eQ pUS-pOIISd FI/82/€0 !33wa H23YD Ivinkay :adAl Troxied
AYYNIWITHENG IISTHIY A2AUD BZ:SZ¢60 PT/9T/€0 :uny

14 25eg WEZLSAS TIOWAYd AINOCD AE¥OLS WOTS0¥d :adey




T

G0 BEY

PO’ FLE
00°005'%
00"00¢€
00°05L'¢
00°€L9
00 €8T
2
6L'3T
86'¢TE
S6°6¥8
26°TLT

6E£" 9%

TYLOL
ADHHD

abeg

TE°2TI
LE' 18
£€°98
81 2¢
£9°9L
06°6¢€
66°L8
-6%7ZPT
65°'§
20'€9
608
GL'68
66'L8
60 €9
61°02
€674
6% FT
98°¢9s
£6°EE
P17 £9
0z L8
8L"8
“68°

00" ¥EY
00w

¥0'PLE
006 G0sS'v
00'00¢
00°05L'¢
00 gL
00" €8T
0o0-

&L 92
86 ' ¢¢
96°6%8
26°TLT
SETLT
99° 89

98 TV
LL'g

LL°8
6Z2°TT -

LNOOWY

€989
1£989
T€£988
TESEY
TE989
TE9RS
TE9BS
TE9RS
TESBS
18889
T£589
1€989
T€£989
TE989
1£988
1€989
T£983
TE989
T£989
TE989
TE989
TESBS
TE989

g098e
80S8S

26589
LL589
L¥989
85382
reogs
£2989
2eses
609839
L2989
§£989
Tes89
<2983
22989
cL989
T8589

8589
18589

#ENTHEL

¥T/%0/%
YI/¥0/%
BT/P0/%
PI/%0/%
FI/50/%
¥T/¥0/F
¥T/%0/%
PT/%0/%
v1/%0/%
YI/%0/%
¥I/V0/¥
¥I/%0/%
FT/80/%
PT/%0/%
YI/%0/%
¥I/%0/%
FT/%0/%
YT/¥0/%
YI/%0/Y
¥I/50/F
FT/5G/%
PT/v0/%
vI/P0/%

FL/V0/ Y
¥1/v0/%

¥I/%0/%
¥I/%0/%
bT/v0/%
¥I/%0/%
¥I/v0/%
¥T/50/%
vT/%0/%
¥T/v0/%
PE/VO/ %
YI/v0/%
PT/70/%
PL/¥0/%
PI/P0/%
¥I/Y0/%
PT/Y0/Y

YI/90/%
YU/%0/%

A A (e

YFETH -dOHS

BOTSOMA

SHOTE 'HYTH DI -E0E8550T
SEELTIL

SHELIIZ ¥DOLS

LI S¥9 -PLl 69619HEIA
TIO-¥LL 646T9HYIL

WIY TIIND-LZ91508
HALTTA-HLL 656T9HUIA
LI €8Y) ~JJdITNN0d
ging-vLl 656T9TIII
LNFATOS &OHS

TIC PLl 656T9ENII
HELTIL LD €S€T9TAIS
HALTII-FL-1 654619 YLz
EO08 LSNd LZITSOS
HAATONE-ACHS

INIOLHE ‘WIY INQD ~LZ9TS0S
AL982 BOTSOMd

AL98Z -B0TSoMd

JOSNES 1dd¥ LZST1508
IDETAEY 17T -MO1d €228%Md
ONIHO

PI0Z '98-£1 HOWWKW

YT/0€/9-%1/1/%
ASVAT
MOTd MONS CO A" HDYWWI

AQOTEW IXE 400D SY AN

N¥Ed S0LT I¥L -TWTEI
SEITAEOS WYY SMOWS
HIIAYES HADNIITINODETAL
AWEn

RATONAANE/ LSTA
¥TDZ/8T/¢€

A¥ANOYT HD

A¥ANOYT dCHS

KYCNOY'T JOHS

ANONOVTI L 1S

JAQNOYT 2L LS
AYANOVT TL LS

NOILATI¥NOSEd FDIOCANT

PI/¥0/% HALSIODMI ADIHD

ALNAOD XEUOLS

SL¥¥d OLN¥Y ALID IVLIdYD

SIMET LIODS ‘fTIEEund

ONI WMYIV OTTENvYDNNg
NOOTYS QOOTE 40 IaMone

M YHAZZ 'HEIANOE

(FAWOD} SINEDIEY JO a¥vo"
OLEN TYIDHHWKOD WIAWNdId
ONI 0D A14dNS DATE WEOUIE
voLEH VIIHEWY 0 NNWE
TA¥ES EONBUIANODETAL IILY
SSANTIEM ANY HITYEE O¥Y
ONI IHOTH NMIAS TEVd4AY

d7 INVE0Ud SYOININY

ONI CQRSTY
FOANIA

YI/20/%0
STETEd

09E8BL

6GEBL
BSEBL
LGEBL
oGERL
SSE8L
PSEBL
£9€8L
28€8L
TSEBL
0gEBL
6PEBL

8YE8L

LPEBL

HITHON

MDHHD
: @aeg uny
tan 3aodey




4

0E" 182
[4- 1]
00°80E’'E
00°00T

16" ZE¥

TT"8LS'T

05°2zZ'e
LY 9%

66 KNS T

00'0SH'T¥®

00801

L9 16T L

¥9"E8Y

68 8L
00'00T

8L YLT'Y

oorooo’T
90" 95

£6°TES'T

THLOL
ADEHD

abeg

0€’1BZ
z6° 58
ogTBoE’T
00°'00T

£8°'9%2
80°98T

0% 6LT
TL86T'T

0S"ZZZ'Z
Ly 9y

v6'9Ce
S0'LLYTT

00'SET’EE
00 SEZE’'S

00'80T

00'SL9'1T
L9791%°§

207§

68§°05
S9°TS
68708
T0'0%
¥1'S91
$0 00T

68°5L
00°00T
§Z°ZEE
L§ T0L'E
I PET'T
$S°9T0'E
00°000'T
90" 95

DL LE
£8'sH
E9°GP
66'6

-2 £V

LNDOWY

IB9BS
s8589
88289
0£989

8%989
avoag9

S¥989
S¥9B9

01989
6L989

£EgSES
£8589%

26989
263989

6589

T8989
TS92%

11389
92989
LT989
0%989
¥BSEYS
o¥9o89
0¥o8s

rES83
98989
9989
9€989
9€982
9989
ST989
S£989
TE2ES
1£588
€989
1€£989
1£989

#SH0IL

¥T/0/¥
PI/%0/%
PL/%0/%
¥1/90/%

PT/%0/%
YL/V0/%

PLAYO/ Y
PL/P0/%

LAY LA
PI/%0/F

VL/v0/%
¥I/P0/%

PT/F0/T
PI/¥0/¥

PI/P0/P

L/P0/ Y
FT/V0/Y

¥L/%0/%
YI/¥0/%
¥1/%0/%
¥1/%0/%
FT/60/%
FL/v0/T
vT/00/%

PI/P0/%
¥I/%0/¥
PT/V0/%
PT/%0/%
YI/%0/%
PL/%0/%
YT/90/%
YT/¥0/%
FI/B0/%
¥I/%0/%
PI/V0/%
¥I/%0/%
PI/P0/%

IdLYd

# ofd

TEOOZT~£BLETT WILJ-SIOUNI
SAITAdNS SWI

SMOONIM NO INIL WIIg
NIATIW’ SHANNYS

dHild 80TS9IMI
WOMIHAVYIA 'dWNd BOTS9Md

TASIIC 2 OHU~-HATA M1
TISHALI ¥ DFH ~TWId MIT

SMIl DNITIHQOWDITOWECGAH
XEANFITE NV Ldd

SYIVAHEY 8L1L
SYIYagy 8LL

NOILONAdY TN
NQILINGIY TEN4

YT0Z ‘9Z-£1 HOUWN

TYNId LH0ddNS AUVHLIN
L¥04ENS SETIIALIIOY HIOOA

T0000-5600Z52L6 QUYDUIY
ANOHA /¥ENTHER

YIVE d¥dI WOD

HAYIE 08TL-TPL

avdI D€

avdl I0000-Z90€92ZLL
LNV

QASANESIA LNAWHS INIYD
ANOL JAHSYALYM JIATYL
TESEIQ-BUIZ LA
TISHIA ¥ DBY M4
TISHIA -EYLd HOA
TISHIA *® DIU-M4

SAYQ B

MOILDENNOD -TLY¥
YOSNES £0685Dd
SDNILLIJ 80TS59Md
SBNILLIA §0TSOMA
HOLIENNOD £0685DE
HYIM D04 £0685D"

NOLLATYISET HIIOANI

YI/70/% WELSISTE AOEHD

ALNNOD AEAQLE

OHOE g¥¥M HIMNOd DI¥OLSIH
ONIDVWIOUDIW I¥HSEA HOIH
NIZHDE A¥NEH

¥ DIVED ‘NVAWLEVH

0 ¥IanvId 'SIHUYH

JIONIVED

O AD¥ENE SYHATA
DNIYEANIDNG LSEM ddvd

¥ SYIOHDIN ‘NIva

TT NIVINOOW AMS0M SNIWWND

o1 SEHOIANES MOIHD SS0MD

¥ OIAYIDO 'VISHYD

ONI LSEHD ALINOWWOD

JdIHSYANIYYd ODTIED
NOEAATEL ALNOOD TTIHDHNHD

NYANESNOQIENS YILUM NOSUYWD

DNI 00 TIO RITIVA NOSHYD
g0¥d TTINIAND ALID NOSHWD

ONI Qyod TY¥LIAYD)

UOANTA

YL/Z0/%0
§TETEd

6LEBL
BLEBL
LLEBL
9LEBL

SLEBL

PLERL

£LE8L
ZLE8L

TLEBL

oLEBL

63EBL

8IEHL

L9t8L

99€8L
S9EBL

PoERL

E9E8L
ZIE/L

T9E8L

YHEWIN

ADIHO
¢ @3eq uny
toN 3xodey




£

0L78%5¢

COBYR’ Y
00°005'T
00'g5z8°s
00°'S8T°2T
4320

B0 LS0'T

Z1° 0%

05988

TS LEL'E

LBTO9PT'T

8L ' T6HT

6V'68%

0C'DDZ ST

TYLOL
AOEHD

abeg

FCSLY
99°'6¥%9

¥6'10T
§9°09
28" 0v
287 £LT
LB TE

00'8%%' Y
0000581
00°528°9
G0'S81°Z
0% E¥T

00°L8T
00°09t
g0°0TL

00" BT
Zr°ze

0§ T8¢
00" S€ET

ALLT
#LL'SS
~68'6¢
PINRS-T
200" %ST
AT W68 'L

Z5°68
(428413
£0°569

8EZTHT

86" LT
Pe 1T

Y6 6E
86°'62
¥6'65
9T v0T
0Z°9t
¥6'LE
09°19
00°6¢€
vZ's

LG S¥

00'00Z'ST

LMOONY

£5989
25989

81989
£898%
Z¥989
c¥oB9
£8989

§5989
SL985
56589
6589
88589

£T983
£T989
£T989

[4:-E1-3]
2gogg

LBSBY
LEe582

1998
19389
19983
19989
28589
98589

61989
61989
61989

£Z98%

0Te8e
6%289
61389
6%989
6¥989
6%989
6%989
6¥949
6¥989
67989
67989
9%989

25982

#SNVAL

PT/v0/%
PT/00/%

PT/B0/%
YI/¥0/%
PI/%0/%
FI/%0/%
¥I/%0/%

FT/H0/%
¥I/%0/%
PI/%0/%
¥T/V0/¥
PI/P0/%

PT/P0/%
¥I/%0/%
PL/90/%

yT/v0/F
YI/P0/%

YI/P0/ T
FL/v0/7

PL/%0/%
¥I/%0/%
$T/90/%
¥T/P0/%
¥T/%0/%
vL/v0/%

PT/Y0/%
YI/%0/%
¥I/%0/F

PI/P0/ ¥

FI/P0/%
vI/%0/¥
PI/P0/%
PL/v0/7
vr/vo/v
¥I/%0/%
YI/P0/%
PI/%0/%
PT/%0/%
YI/%0/%
PT/Y0/ %
PT/60/F

vL/%0/%
FIYg

yT/v0/%

¥ o/a

BAYIL 90£9505
SEYIL TTE9S0S

LELTTOZ-3O

gYL S SEXIANI CNY S9vYL
SUHANIE D06 'SATHEIIVYE 9y
T-828ET0EZ-30 LOALO¥d LIE

TYNIA PT0Z-€T0Z Id04dnsS

34 LSIXgd01

SEITAANS SWA

BEVSEO0G6LOBY NYOT
ZHTTLOOCED NWOT
600TZ20000 NVOT

SEnLA

qd4 MIUD STINA
NIAEN

LAMSYD TS9CP TLE HAIJ
MOId ¥2T8¥Md

TYES ¥AZOUPLL HNIA
MOTd PZZe¥Ma

LIAEID ZUCD PLTd
SWIVdEY 2L

WYY LI d4054v1
ASNIDIT FE0aY 40
YENNYDS SHILNI¥d 40

SLATINE

SGNE MEOMLEN S LvD
IDATE LOGad HO

STANCL 40 NTD INVIZ
LAIMTE ULND ¥S

HALIIE LNYId

HIADOT JdIAR YEWIL ¥ NYJd
LOETR LCdId HD

YELIIA DO¥A JOHS~LINYIJ
LOETE LO4Ed HD

YAIOYT gALE -d0HS
LOATI- 1043 HO
268%Z0Z/6588T0 dATYLS Hund

TENIS

NOILAI¥ISEd TITOANI

HALSIDAY ADIHD
ALNOCD AZEUCLS

OLNIWVTEIYS J0 HYIL NYHUOW

NI SNOIZNIOS HDILAQ CULIW
YATTOUIANOD 0D HOAN
LEAYOUYH ' HIHINOT

077 SINZAE F078€ QIndIt
M1 SINIAZ =09 qINdIT

ONI LSISSV-HJIT

OTT ¥1lI3dd1

NI SEDOIANHAS HNIT HOVOSNVT

SNOS ® SIIdND N 1T

o7 gdr0

OTT d0¥N0S TLI

I DdW SLONAO¥d MYIYLSNANT

HOIA¥AS LICHUD LOJZd IWOH

FOAMEA

¥T/20/%¢
STetad

£6E8L

Z6E8L
I6€EBL
06EBL
GEEBL
88€8L
L8EBL
3BEBL

S8€eL

veEBL

ERBE8L

THEBL

1BEBL

08cBL

SHAWNN

ADEHD

a3eg uny
oN jaoday



I 00 ASNUNIJ TYNOISSEIOUd Low8L

$Z° 269 ¥Z"269 8£989 PT/P0/%
SSEDDY MIIWEA 9078L
00°LIT 00°LIT 86589 YT/¥0/% SSBTEOLETIE
ONI SEMOY AENLIIA 50%8L
00 ¥6 00°98 L6589 PL/¥0/F PTOT “9C-€T HOUWW
00'8 L6589 PI/P0/¥
a OTEONY ININLEd pOPEL
00" 0%1 00" CFT 96589 PL/P0/% SINI¥E 6 X 9 ¥1
AQNYS ‘TEAY] £0%8L
068901 E¥'EE 8988 ¥1/%0/% STIONEE HOHEW aMV¥ NI
8T 6T CEIBS FI/P0/ T ST
0T 2T ZEGRY PT/%0/% SYRANIE
60'2Z¥ TEYBYO ¥T/%0/F SYEZ INYHNO
ONI 1LOd3d EDIJJ0 20%8L
ZI"66E'T LY EZES PLIBY PL/v0/% NOQISSIWWOD ONINNYTIA
00°6% vL989 ¥T/v0/% SHdYd
92 BLE $L989  ¥I/90/% SUENO LSS THHOD
6€'8L1 ¥L989 PT/90/7 INEHACTIATT WNOD
ONI WINMOJIINYD J0 TILXEN TOPBL
00" ¥8L LT 0O PeL LT 18989 PT/V0/ P ZH IWOD ' NYHID  LEWIHANYS
dind * IVES YAWAEN ooves
00 01T 00 0TI 68582  FI/¥0/% NOIIVIED SWYLS YATIS
(o) Al ENTE YAVAEN B6EBL
00" ST 00'ST £698%  YT/¥0/%
THAOSYIUL AEN S6E£8L
00°00S°LE 00°005’LE ¥¥989 71/%0/% TYNIJ I¥0ddNs ATLHED
AQLSEN0d A0 AIQ AEN LEEBL
LL ¥EL'Y 00" %8571 06989 PT/¥0/%
05°L8T 06989  ¥T/¥0/¥ ECEEQNA
00°'09 06989 vT/v0/%
00°92 06989 YI/P0/¥ 5
LL'STL'T §6989 ¥I/V0/%
0§ SLT §6589 vI/50/%
00'zey 56988  FI/¥0/Y
00 00T 56989  BT/¥0/%
00'S522 55989 FL/60/% FHI
00°0% 56989 FT/90/%
AATTOALAHOD AN 26€8L
00°0LE 06" 8L 05989 YI/¥0/% A¥ALIVE -TL0 TTSTSHUIZ
5196 05989 YI/¥0/% Y00 TY8ISEULL
¥6°09T 05983  ¥T/v0/% i ¥OLOW TLH THETS SUIZ
0€° 261 05989 PT/¥0/¥ SUEATIIYD (LY TPBTSAULE
¥6°091 05989 PT/90/¥ SYOLOY TLY TYETSHYIL
8€° 12 05989 ¥T/%0/¥ SEINALIVE TL¥ TPETSENIA
0 evT 05989 vI/P0/ Y SaYd AE-TLY TPETSHEIL
B0 EGT 05989 ¥I/90/% AMALIVE TLY TPETSIAIS
709671 05989 vT/%0/% SUIAITYD AAVNE LZITSOS
-9% €87 0s98%  HI/¥0/% SERATTYS-TLE TPRTSEUIL
-Z0'ERT 05S98S  BI/P0/% SE¥OS EAVHEY L29TS0S
~08'82 05989 PT/00/¥ NYETD EMVEE-dOHS
857 €8 05989 yU/%0/% SWAY TOULNOD LZSTSOS
SLY¥Yd OLOW N SEEBL
66'82 6682 £5989 YT/%0/% HOLIH #T -£5252249
SIAVd ADOEL ¥ OLOY YAYN YEEBL
9L VST 'T 91 0E¥ 25989  ¥L/%0/% STUIL ZITT90S
TYIOL LNNOWY HENTUL jcAA{e § o/d NOILATH¥ISAQ HAITOANI HOONEA HEEWAN
ADEHD MDEHD
¥i/%0/% WALSIOAY ADFHD vi/z0/v0 * 83ed uny
y  abed ALNNOD AHAOLS STETEA oN jaoedsy




s

[ A4-14
05 €T
Y6 6ET
IS'6¥%

8z L6

ZS'EIC’6
00°00L"Sg
60°0ET
00°8

£E6°'99

00°'00% "1

05'¢€9%

SZ°6¢2

00'DSE’T
GO 0BT
SSLLE

TYLOL
ADFHD

abeg

v6796
LL¥OY
L8 600°T
[T

0%’ Es5e
08°'¢T
76 6ET
is5'6¥

1z’
¥rOL
¥l
TT°LT
95°1
ge's
ZEET
TE'S
1Z°L
S8
(470
Lz €
68"
LIBT
(444
8%'g
6% ¥
PE'T

TS ETIR'6E
a0’ 00L’s
60°0LT
00°8

69781
¥Z'BY¥

40001

09 9¢€T
00" LEY

SL°ZE
05°9

00" 0sz’t
00°' 02T
5SS LLT

LNOQOWY

v6989
v63983
76989
re989

0eogo
10889
0989
00989

68989
68082
£8989
68982
68289
68389
68989
68989
63989
68382
68989
68383
68989
68989
68989
68989
68989
£8989

6£389
45989
16989
65989

21989
tigse

06589

1E€989
TZ989

66589
66589

8L989
21289
£E£989

#SHNVAL

FT/V0/%
YT/%0/%
YI/%0/%
FL/Y0/P

PI/%0/%
¥1/70/%
¥1/%0/%
¥T/¥0/%

YI/50/%
F1/00/%
FI/%0/%
YI/P0/%
PL/%0/%
PI/¥0/%
YI/%0/%
PL/P0/¥
PT/¥0/%
¥I/¥0/%
YT/¥0/%
PI/%0/%
¥T/%0/%
PLIVO/Y
FT/90/¥
¥1/%0/%
$T/%0/%
YI/%0/%

¥I/¥0/%
PL/P0/¥
PL/P0/%
YI/%0/%

PT/P0/ ¥
vI/%0/%

PL/V0/%

¥I/P0/%
PL/P0/Y

YL/¥0/%
PT/¥0/%

vi/v0/¥%
FI/F0/F
YI/V0/T

HLYa

# 0/4

ESHAWAE LHOIWMLYUYD 0192
SLHDITT ULS HO 40 HMOL
SLHOIT LS ALID ¥INIDHIA
LHOIT LS SUANOISSIWWOD 28

MADWE T LTIA-TIVD IDIANAS
FI0Z '92-£T1 HOUWH

10daq TIIH a709

WSTHNCL DA

OMINNYI

LI

(DA} =ATI
HANOYSSTHHOD

va

HOLWESIA TYELNED
¥OSSASSY
INZHEOTIARA ALINOWWOD
{DA) @|YIZ
QOOMEDOT /aUTa
NIWNGY /S TTOULANOD
JATHEHS

ap

JdTEIHS

SMYOM DITEnd

{(On) HYIS
YIAUODTE

HUITO

HONYENSNI TEYILEE TIY4Y
Ld0ddns

SEIM4dNS SHA

T¥OICEW INEDIANT

SAITAINS INIVA
dn H2NolL ‘LNIVd

DNMINIVIL 00Z2-8
T0-949E2N) WALLOTA 5I9
IOW DOWHE-LS59BLYEGLL 10DV
YI0Z "92-€T HOUWW
NOILYSNEJWOD LNIOY
SNIACLINOW SLLS
TISENES LT LNAWHS INIYO

NOIIAIWOSEA ADLOANI

PI/¥0/% WRLSIOFTU ADIHD

ALNOQD AA¥OLS

0D YIMO4 DIJLIDNE YHudIs
SWELSAS TOULNOD WENEIS

NETIY NYIN"E 'JYOHS
oI SEOIANES IVEQTD DES

a1 NI SHDIAMAS TYdOTD D2HS

GT NI SEDIA¥ES TYEOTH 0495
VHH QIE¥Z4AYd SAYVH LNIVS
ONI YILNADILEY SAYYH INIYS

ONI 02d4nd

O TYOICEW TYNOIDHY NMONTY

LYW INIVd ONZY

L H4ESOr ' LOUYHNIZY

(43} DONI 0D NWOIOW Ay

W RIONYS ‘' qdodawy
OLLYSNAAWO: AONIDY DITHRAE

UNI SADIAHT NOILOHLOHWJ

AOINIA

PL/20/%0
STETHEA

ET¥BL
Zeves
TEvaL
0Z%¥8L

6T¥aL

aT¥eL
LTFBL
9TPEL
Wﬁvmb

FIFBL

£I¥8L

ZTkeL
TIPSL

0TP8L
60%BL
80¥8L
AIEWNON
ADFHD

Po@3eg uny
ioN 3axodey



vLUTS
LY 26
2096
Ly T6
Ly Z6
80° 96
80796
69766
Ly 26

gv° s 8¥'S

€L E€E8'0T ECTEER’OT
0o0roze 00" Q9%
00° 09T

66°£85'6 61" ELEZ
[4 AR
gE’ gt
QE°8TE
627867
S0T0L
61°6£9
0L LPT
SLTEET
997811
s9° g
£S°ST6
SL°9%8
92 £
BL 6PE
LZ"BEE
2g€2¢
¥e'Gee
98°¥¢e
TL'o8
98° 19
¥L¥E
Zeree
SLLY
£V LOT
26 0LS
£6° 1€
¥5°2ST
€T €689
0L 9TT
88" LOT
o8'be
L6 EST
02'0TT
TE 85
S0 3%E
EL' 28
LL'ES
T6°8LE

THELOL LNOOWY
AOEHD

[} abeg

29989
29989
29989
z9989
29989
29989
29989
£4L989
29989

0g9g89
9L989

20389
20889

¥6989
v6989
v6989
v6389
¥6989
¥6989
ve989
¥6989
vs989
?6989
¥6982
76989
76989
ve989
¥6989
P6E989
v6989
Y6989
¥6989
¥6989
v6989
¥6989
7989
¥698%
?E98S
v6989
v698%
$6989
76989
¥6383
k6983
Y6583
6985
¥6989
¥6539
76989
¥6389
76389
¥6989

#5H00AL

¥T/90/¥
PT/¥0/%
»L/70/7
YI/%0/%
PT/%0/%
PL/%0/%
PI/P0/%
vT/%0/%
PL/70/%

PL/%0/%
L ATALTAS

PL/0/%
¥T/%0/%

YT/%0/%
¥T/%0/%
YT/¥0/%
PL/v0/%
PT/Y0/%
PE/T0/7
PT/P0/V
¥L/%0/%
YL/v0/ %
vI/%0/%
¥T/%0/%
YI/%0/%
YI/90/%
YI/¥0/®
PT/BG/0
yI/90/¥
y1/%0/%
FT/%0/%
¥T/50/%
¥T/%0/%
v1/%0/%
PT/v0/%
¥I/v0/¥%
v1/%0/%
PT/v0/Y
vT/%0/%
¥I/%0/%
FT/P0/
PI/%0/%
¥1/%0/%
¥T/%0/%
v1/%0/%
¥1/%0/%
BT/%0/%
PI/P0/ ¥
FI/0/%
¥1/%0/%
PI/ 00/
YT/¥0/¥

TV

vI/v0/%

LAoddns

ASHAUTE LHOIUMINYD 0TO9E
q¥¥d ¥ HONVY INAd 00T
MIVE HOA ¢y ANIJWI T9TE
¥ LINQ &AM NOANYD 0Z¥%

€ LINQ AWM NOQANWD 0¢¥
qL8 I N S8BT

¥4 N¥Ed SOLT

ad HONYY I¥dd 008

SLHDIT 1S O § TES
SIHOIT 1§ O ¢ TvE
BLHOIT LS O N 9LT
NOANWD dTIW XIS DZZZ
ASNOHLYNOD I € 5§ 9¢
ALID YHATIS/HO 1S NIWW
{ONINIVEL) IS D N T¥%T
SHEMII 18 O N

MURAMITYE LS NOSYYD

DA LING IS O S

IHOIT Tvd/Y00dIno 1§ O §
2A LIND IS O §

FOVEYD IS5 € § 0T

1§ NOLLOS

MEY¥d 3A IS § N §02

whn Q¥ ENIAVE TVINVYAS 009
dWISYD IS O § T2

INTd EIM IS HINOS M 00T
AYVd  SNIWITO WYS 06%
¥IDI SNAWITO WYS 009
TI¥L TPE AMH SN TT6

05 IS 2 § s02

08 IS5 2 § €02

¥a L8 > § 1oz

Z/1 d0HS @¥ TIOL 00T
2/T 9aIg Q¥ TIOL 0%1
Z/T OAId  d¥ TIOL Q€I
dOLSLSEY IS O N T8¢t
LINO I8 O N S¥i

SEY @M LHOTUMINYD 2192
¥ LS AYM NOANWD TE¥

NOILAL¥O8AT FOIOANI

YALSIDAY ADIHD
ALNNOCD AHHOLS

WHLEAS HHLYM O2 IS
JATHIAHS O3 IS

(DA) HTINID BOINZES 0D 18

¥HEO OTT SHIYLSOANI MDITIS

UOANTA

¥T/T0/%0
STETEd

LEZP8L
QZ¥8L

STYBL

¥e¥aL

HIFHON

AZEHD
¢ @3eq unyg
1QN jaodayg




TT 8LS £9989 PL/%0/% FSYE-SaVOd OA

28" €89 £9989 PT/¥0/F ESYE-SAY0Y DA
ONI JIidEONOD CE YYYBL
00" th 00" ¥ %989 ¥I/V0/¥ DNIAYOM LOM ay¥¥dd AM
I¥d 'NELLIHM £¥78L
0T’ 08T 80 BE 19589 YI/P0/ Y HITHAMS S0TSIMd
08 00T 5989 vI/¥0/% AASTAME BOTGIMd
44N+ L9989 PLI/%0/% dAMRS
00 AMddANS YAYAIN NUHLSEM Z¥v8L
19 '8ET Le" 12 9989 YI/%0/% ELoETE 1odd3d HO
65 L 53983 ¥I/¥0/% HLIATR JOdEd HD
50° 60T 5998%  FI/F0/% TLOETE LOdHd HD
ONI CDaEM T¥P8L
00 00T'E 00" 00T’2 99989 ¥T/00/¥ DILAES X9 dIdWnd
YA AS NWI DILJIS SUEAIVM 0PPeL
00°'2TL'T 00°ZTL’T 82989 PI/90/% NYDECW
HANOUOD CO HOHSWM 6E¥SL
00'2P0°T 00" ®s 50989 YIS0/ Y
00" 9€E6 50989 PL/YPOSY
0o0'es 50989 PL/%0/% ¥T0Z '9E-€1 HOUVH
ONI SdNOL ALID VINIDYIA BEVSL
00°005'2 00°00S8'2 L0989 YT/%0/%
ATOADHOLOW ALI) YINIOMIA LEPEL
00°02T 00°02T ?0989  FI/P0/¥ SOEAIA MDOLSHOD ZT
ALIDOTAA ORAIA 9EPEL
00°000°¢€ 00'000°€ 98989 PT/90/%
DIOA SCYBL
59 €€ S5°E 50589 vi/v0/%
00" 05T 30989 YT/Y0/ ¥ ANAQ OZAYWIA
0008 20989 PI/P0/P ¥AOL ENIM
DIDA PEVBL
00006 ET D0'0DEET 89985  FI/¥0/% ONIJOLMOd NVETD NIVIA
TONHDEL QIAIA ANNOUHUIANN £EP8L
%6102 TE'69 ¥9989  PI/¥0/¥ "HI- NYEd S0LT
59'2EY $9989 FT/50/% S/M- NUId S0LT
INFHAAQIANI TVEANED IWL ZEPEL
78' 659 g ES9 £¥989 51/50/% SNITTIE SONYNALNIYW
JOIVAETE dNUANESHAHL TEP8L
09809 0% G8¢ 71989 »I/¥0/F 'SNYHEL OIGOY
02'£28 YT989 PT/00/¥ 'SNTAL 0rEnY
ILIT ® PNIIHOdHY ANIHSNNS 0EFBL
05°'908 05'9¥ £0989 FT/50/%
00°STL £0989 PT/50/%
00°S% £0989 YI/v0/% YI0Z ‘9Z-€T HOUWW
SEISTUANAINE ¥¥Ad NS 62¥8L
00°005'2 00°005'2 $5989 TT/Y0/7 PT0Z-E£T0C HSYAT YEIMOL
F5504 4TAL ALNNCD AIWOLS BZ¥AL
LLT8SL'Y 0L" 08 £L589%  PT/Y0/%
58'8¢2 29989 PL/¥0/ %
LE"¥E 29989 PI/P0/7%
LY T6 29989 YT/P0/¥
£€1'09T 29989 PL/P0/%
$Z 10T 29989 yT/P0/%
L8°00% 29989 YL/V0/¥
S8 8T 29989 PL/90/%
vLU1S 29989 ¥T/%0/%
IYLOL INDOWY #ENYUL TIYA # 0/d NOILATIHISH HOTOANT HOGNEA HEENAN
ADTHD ) MOEHD
PI/P0/% WILSIDAY NDAHD vT/TO/Y0 ¢ @3ed unyg

L abedq ALNAOD AF¥OLS STETAd :oN 3xoday




UENCTISS TNNOD

YT/%0/%  ALYQ ADIHD

0Z° LS50 ¥4

TELOL SAIEHD

NOIIWZINOHIOV ONY MITAZY 4C¢ INIZWIDATIMONAOY




T

ZL'ES0'E

TLTTSO'E

TYLOL
JUD

sbed

0066
86°TS¢
PETIT
S0'6E
S0°09
00°59
00°s9
66°6F
S8BT
88807
00°09
00°0€E
[A AR
08'18
1189
0L 6T
00’09
00° 00T
007 €0T
veE'SE
00°169
a0 00s
£6°%T
8618

LNOCHY

ALVd

NOLLYZIHOHIOY (NT MEIATZY J0 INSWISAHIMONADYT

STT
91T
LT
LIT
1T
0THIL
QTPT
0zt
02T
0T?%T
0T¥T
OT%1
oTet
12T
ATHT
QTH+T
01l
61T
0T%I
0TPT
£TT
€11
£IT
£TT

#INYHL

PI/%0/%
PT/¥0/%
YT/%0/¥
¥1/%0/%
PT/V0/¥
PT/¥0/%
PL/P0/p
¥I/%0/%
PT/¥0/%
YI/90/%
PT/E0/ Y
PTL/90/%
¥T/50/%
PI/70/%
YI/P0/%
PL/P0/%
FT/P0/¥
PT/80/9
PI/%0/¥
PT/P0/¥
PI/P0/%
PI/V0/%
¥T/%0/%
YI/V0/%

ZLYQ

QaVK "€ TYMNINIT ATUNHE
SMEATD TX WANOL dH
HOOY HINAAIAT/ONITE
SIUANY /IYIND /7903
YCIS ued 'TENA
NDITIY-SPS56E ARQ WOD
NOITY-LE9TSOS
HONYSINN'SI30488 JAYLIS
HAINIETINOD

WYd LODJN/INIIOq
JIHMANYS FIVIYd INHDI0Q
Wyd LODN

HONNT dANOD MAAN

HJIE

te/e

SANG dIHSYIGWAN DOI
\SLYYONOD FSNCHAVALS
VHLSIDEY WOD ' TIYE0STAN
STYTYRLYW TIINA DVYAT
STYIHELYW TII¥d DYNT
dHYLS AADEY/SIITONEIVd
ANOHd FALITIALYS

NOILdIHOSEA

HELSIOEE JUYD HSVYHOUNd

ALNAOQD ATHOLS

WO3 " 2dAROLOD ¥T-9Z-¢
INYHA-LPTT

$1/92/%€0

»T/SZ/E0

¥SSANYA ' SNIHHLS
IWVEA NOLLOY-YLIANAS
WY NOILOY-WLLAMIS
Jod FETMLIOS aNOWAHY
¥HSO HONNT ANOWIEY

§ DO gI¥ vT/Sz/E B4
D LSNAMYS FI/P2/€ 84
40 ILEond 1/ve/E 84
FIYD ANYED-NIAFNW
A00E E2ENOST IYHAT
9B/ MIWTAYW NYWIID
T2/¢ AIWIAVH NWWIID
HIVD NIQTOD NYWIID
ILEZLTE WANQUYD
TYEOIE oA NIVE

2T AAAYACT FT/LT/E aa
INTHIWIY~NIATIN'D
INTUAWI%-NIAGN" 2
LO4Ed EDIAL0-NIAAN'D
LSOIAY0E -MIAAN'D
INSHAYY

# FOICANI I14¥q~-JNNI

£ TR30L PIVD:

TIVD TVIDEEWACD HENO STTIM

¥1/20/%0
LS0ey5ad

JOANHEA

91

FEEAON
24

a3ed uny

on jxodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 15, 2014 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Height Variance for five feet in addition to the 35 feet height of buildings and structures
for an E1 VCH zoned property.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve Variance 2014-001.
3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144
4. Staff summary: Height Variance for five feet in addition to the 35 feet height of buildings and

structures for an E1 VCH zoned property. The site location is 21430 Saddleback Road,
Virginia City Highlands (1 acres).

5. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendixes.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: _Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
2 2 :Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ ]

Agenda Jtem No.




Storey County

Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report — Height Variance 2014-001

To:

FroM:

MEETING DATE:

MEETING LOCATION:

CASE NUMBER:

APPLICANTS:

PROPERTY OWNERS:

STAFF CONTACT:

EXHIBITS:

APPENDIXES:

GUIDING DOCUMENTS:

PROPERTY LOCATION:

REQUEST:

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Storey County Planning Department
April 15,2014

Storey County Courthouse
26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

2014-001

Danie! and Michelle Bartholomew
Daniel and Michelle Bartholomew
Dessie E. Redmond, Planner

Exhibit 1: Zoning Map, Exhibit 2: Vicinity Map, Exhibit 3: Site
Elevations Study and Access Map, Exhibit 4: Site Plan, Exhibit 5:
Building Elevations, Exhibit 6: Adjacent Properties, Exhibit 7: Site
Photos

Appendix 1: Lot Consolidation Information; Appendix 2: Letter
Submitted by Applicant; Appendix 3 — Roof Pitch Variance
Request from Applicant — Storey County Building Official Dean
Haymore Approval with Conditions; Appendix 4: Letter from
VCHPOQA President Jay Carmona; Appendix 5: VCHPO January
14, 2014 Meeting Minutes; Appendix 6: VCHPO February 11,
2014 Meeting Minutes

Storey County Code, Section: 17.03.140 Variances, 17.40 Estate
Zone and the Storey County Master Plan

21430 Saddleback Road (APN’s 003-101-45 and 003-101-46),
Virginia City Highlands, Nevada

Height variance for five feet in addition to the 35 feet height of
buildings and structures for an E1 VCH zoned property.




Steff Report - 2014-001 Pianning Depariment
Yvariaonce - Bartholomew 7758471144

'I.  BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS

1.1  Site location and characteristics. The property is located in the Virginia City Highlands
1 acre Estates (E1 VCH) on two, one acre parcels that have been consolidated {(Appendix 1 — Lot
Consolidation Information). The adjacent properties are also zoned E1 VCH (Exhibit 1 — Zoning
Map). Virginia City is approximately 7 miles to the south and Reno is approximately 22 miles to
the north (Exhibit 2 — Vicinity Map). The property is approximately 2.230 acres, vacant and has
steep terrain. There is approximately a 100 foot elevation drop across the property from the south
side to the north side. Access to the property is off Saddleback Road which runs along the south
side of the property (Exhibit 3 — Site Elevations Study and Access Map). A Pictometry elevation
study shows that the elevation on Saddleback Road is approximately 6507 feet, the elevation of
the south side of the proposed residence is approximately 6482 feet and the elevation of the north
side of the proposed residence is approximately 6472 feet. Consequently, the difference in
elevation from Saddieback Road to the north side of the proposed residence is approximately 35
feet. This study suggests that the height of the roof (on the north side which is proposed at 40
feet) will be approximately five feet above Saddleback Road when viewing the residence from
the road. Therefore, the height variance for the proposed residence will have little viewshed
impact off Saddleback Road or to the existing residents.

1.2 Proposed use. The Applicant proposes to construct a single-family residence with a total
livable space of 1739 square feet along with a two-car garage that is approximately 752 square
feet (Exhibit 4 — Site Plan}.

1.3 Variance Requirement. The Applicant proposes to make a small footprint on the land
by taking advantage of the steep terrain with the layout of the house. The south elevation from
grade to the top of roof is approximately 27 feet and the north elevation from grade to the top of
roof is 40 feet (Exhibit 5 —Building Elevations). Storey County Code (SCC) limits the height of
structures to 35 feet except as may be allowed by a variance. Therefore, the Applicant requests a
height variance of five feet for the proposed residence.

1.4  Adjacent properties. One of south abutting parcels has a residence and one has an
accessory garage. The property to the west has a residence. The adjacent properties to the north
and east are vacant (Exhibit 6 — Adjacent Properties).

1.5  Areaimpacts. The proposed residence appears to impose minimal to no adverse impacts
on the surrounding properties. Because of the lay of the land and how the grade drops, the
proposed residence appears to have little viewshed impact off Saddleback Road or to the existing
residents (Exhibit 7 — Site Photos) as discussed in Section 1.1 of this report.

II. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY’S GUIDING
DOCUMENTS

2.1  Summary Table. The following table shows land uses, master plan designations and
zoning for the land surrounding the proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between




Siaff Report — 2014-001 Planning Depariment
Varionce - Barthclomew 775847 1144

the proposal and SCC Title 17 Zoning or the County Master Plan. The proposed use is also
consistent with the surrounding single-family residential uses and vacant parcels.

Land Land Use Master Plan Zoning |
Applicant’s Land Proposed single-family residence with 5' height variance Single-family residential | E1 VCH
Land to south Existing residence and accessory garage Single-family residential | E1 VCH
Land to west Existing residence Single-family residential | E1 VCH
Land to north Vacant Single-family residential | E1 VCH
Land to east Vacant Single-family residential | E1 VCH

III. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE — SECTION
17.40 ESTATES & SECTION 17.03.140 VARIANCE

3.1  Minimum lot size requirements. The minimum acreage in an E1 VCH zone is 1 acre.
The Applicant’s property does conform and exceed the minimum lot size requirements with a lot
size of 2.230 acres.

3.2 Lot dimensions requirements. The average dimension of a lot in one direction (front to
rear or side to side) may not exceed four times the average dimension in the other direction. The
Applicant’s property does conform to the lot dimension requirements.

3.3  Height of buildings and structures. SCC Section 17.40.045 — Height of buildings and
structures states:

“A building, manufactured building, manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a
height of three stores or thirty-five feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance.”

3.3.10 Proposed structure height. The Applicant proposes to make a small footprint on
the land by taking advantage of the steep terrain with the layout of the house. The south
elevation from grade to the fop of roof is approximately 27 feet and the north elevation
from grade to the top of roof is 40 feet (Exhibit 5 ~Building Elevations). SCC limits the
height of structures to 35 feet except as may be allowed by a variance. Therefore, the
Applicant requests a height variance of five feet for the proposed residence.

3.3.20 Variance. A variance may be granted pursuant to SCC Chapter 17.03.140 —
Variance which states:

“A variance to the provisions of this title may be granted by the board with action
by the Planning Commission where by reason of exceptional narrowness, shallowness, or
shape of a specific piece of property at the time of enactment of the regulations, or by
reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary and exceptional
situation or condition of the lot or parcel, the strict application of the regulations enacted




Staff Report - 2014-001 Plainning Depariment
variance - Bartholomew 75.847.1144

under this title would result in peculiar and exceptional practical difficulties to, or
exceptional and undue hardships upon the owner of the property.”

3.3.30 Few to no adverse impacts. As discussed in Section I Background and Analysis,
there appears to be no adverse impacts or safety issues caused by the variance when the
County Codes and conditions of the variance are applied.

3.4  Setback requirements. The E1 VCH zoning has a minimum front set back of 30 feet, a
minimum rear setback of 40 feet and a minimum side setback of 15 feet. The Applicant’s
proposal conforms to all minimum setbacks.

IV. COMPLIANCE WITH THE MASTER PLAN

4.1  Chapter 5 — Conservation and Natural Resources. In Chapter 5 — Conservation and
Natural Resources of the Master Plan, it explains the importance of the flora of the County.
Specifically it states:

“These vegetal communities are typical of the region, and exist in a very harsh climate.
Recovery from disturbance is slow. Disturbance to vegetation leads to a host of environmental
problems such as dislocation of native fauna (permanent or seasonal), increased erosional
hazards and a deterioration of the local watershed.”

4.1.10 Avoidance in disturbing the native vegetation. The Applicant stated in his
submittal letter (Appendix 2 — Applicant Letter) their desires to preserve the natural
features of the property which is why their proposed structure is a small footprint. By
limiting the footprint the Applicant is avoiding disturbing the majority of the vegetation
on the property which in turn avoids environmental problems outlined in the Master Plan.

4.2  Chapter 5 - Conservation and Natural Resources. In Chapter 5 — Conservation and
Natural Resources of the Master Plan, it explains the importance of the flora of the County.
Specifically it states:

“The wild horse is the primary and preferred grazing animal in some areas, notable the
Highlands area. These herds keep the fine fuel (dry grasses) from adding to the high fire danger.
Consequently their presence is needed.”

4.2.10 Wild Horse Grazing and Fire Danger. The Applicant also stated in his
submittal letter their wish to preserve an existing wild horse trail that currently traverses
the property. As the Master Plan explains, wild horse herds help keep down fire danger
with their grazing. The Applicant is proposing to avoid disturbing the wild horse trail
through their property which will prevent destroying the wild horse habitat and in turn the
horse herds will help keep fire danger down,

V. PUBLIC COMMENT

5.1  Public Comment. Staff did not receive any public comment on this file.




Staff Report ~ 201 4-001 Piarning Departmeant

Variance - Bartholomew 7758471144
VI. FINDINGS
6.1  Motion for approval. The following findings of fact are evident with regard to the

requested variance when the recommended conditions of approval in Section VII Recommended
Conditions of Approval, are applied.

6.2

6.1.10 The variance complies with all federal, state, and county regulations.

6.1.20 The variance will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the
abutting properties or the surrounding area.

6.1.30 The conditions of the variance adequately address potential fire hazards and
require compliance with the applicable fire codes, including setback and fire protection
ratings.

6.1.40 The conditions under this variance do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in SCC Chapter 17.40 Estate Zone and Chapter 17.03.140 Variances, or any
other federal, state, or county regulations, including building and fire codes.

6.1,50 The variance address goals specified (and referenced above) in Chapter 5 of the
Master Plan.

Motion for denial. Should a motion be made to deny the variance request, the following

findings with explanation why should be included in that motion.

VIIL

6.2.10 Substantial evidence shows that the variance may conflict with the purpose,
intent, and other specific requirement of SCC 17.40 Estate Zone and Chapter 17.03.140
Variances, or other federal, state, or county regulations.

6.2.20 The conditions under the variance do not adequately mitigate potential adverse

impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety hazards for surrounding
uses.

RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department, unless
otherwise stated.

1.

Compliance. The variance must comply with County Codes, and submitted plans and
reports, as approved. The Applicant must provide the Planning and Building Departments
site plans drawn to scale prior to obtaining a building permit.

Permits and expiration, The Applicant must apply for all building and fire permits for
the structure within 24 months from the date of board approval for this variance, and
continuously maintain the validity of those permits, as appropriate, or this approval will
become null and void. '




Siaff Report — 2012-00 Planning Department
variance - Bartholomew 775.847.1144

3. Maximum. The height Variance is for a maximum of five feet in addition to the 35 feet
allowed height in an E1 VCH zone (a total of 40 feet). The height variance is only for the
proposed residence’s north elevation as shown in the Application and in the Staff Report
(Exhibit 5 — Building Elevations Continued).

4. Taxes paid. Before obtaining a building permit, the Applicant must show the Planning
Department evidence that all property taxes on the land are paid to-date.

Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association. The final structure elevation
drawings must be stamped with the approval the Virginia City Highlands Property Owner
Association (VCHPOA) prior to any building permit issued (Appendix 3 — Roof Pitch
Variance Request from Applicant — Storey County Building Official Dean Haymore Approval
with Conditions; Appendix 4 — Letter from VCHPOA President Jay Carmona; Appendix 5
VCHPO January 14, 2014 Meeting Minutes; Appendix 6 — VCHPO February 11, 2014
Meeting Minutes).

VIIL. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it
deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which
it bases its decision. The decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the
variance is advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners and that governing body must
consider the report and recommendation and must make such a decision thereon as it deems
warranted.

IX. PLANNING COMMISSION MOTION

On March 20, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the findings of fact under
Section 6.1 of this staff report and in compliance with all conditions of approval, the Storey
County Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval for Variance 2014-
001 (summary: yes = 5, nay = 0, absent = 2).

X. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This Section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval is
recommended by Staff and the Planning Commission in accordance with the findings under
Section 6.1 of this report. Those findings should be made part of that motion. A motien for
denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the findings shown in Section
6.2. Other findings of fact determined appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners
should be made part of either motion.

10.1 Recommended motion. In accordance with the recommendation by Staff and the
Planning Commission, the findings of fact under Section 6.1 of this report and/or other findings




Staif Report - 201 4-001 ' Planning Department
variance - Bartholomew 775847.1144

deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and compliance with all conditions
of approval, the Board of County Commissioners hereby approves Variance Application Number
2014-001.

10.2  Alternative motion. In accordance with the findings under Section 6.2 of this report
and/or other finding against the recommendation for approval by Staff and the Planning
Commissioner, the Board of County Commissioners hereby denies Variance Application
Number 2014-001.

Prepared by Dessie Redmond, Planner

Enclosed:
Exhibit 1 — Zoning Map
Exhibit 2 — Vicinity Map
Exhibit 3 - Site Elevations Study and Access Map
Exhibit 4 — Site Plan
Exhibit 5 — Building Elevations
Exhibit 6 — Adjacent Properties
Exhibit 7 — Site Photos
Appendix 1 — Lot Consolidation Information
Appendix 2 — Letter Submitted by Applicant
Appendix 3 — Roof Pitch Variance Request from Applicant — Storey County Building Official
Dean Haymore Approval with Conditions
Appendix 4 — Letter from VCHPOA President Jay Carmona
Appendix 5 VCHPO January 14, 2014 Meeting Minutes
Appendix 6 — VCHPO February 11, 2014 Meeting Minutes




Alepunog Apadoug e e
AUITAUNDD =— - ¢+ s s

"HOA [ pauoz
os[e a1e soruadoud

uaoelpe oy,

'HDA 14 se pauoz
Kyradoad syueorddy
ou3 smoys dewr s1y .

VGEFOG

AW LA R T VA
wauiLndsq B

dejy suruoyz — [ Hquixyg

AMSUICIOUNY —~ SDUDLD A
LOC¥ LOE — SHAIURT




"YLIoU 243 01 S3[IW 77
Alarewnxoadde s1 ouay
Y1 puR YINos 2y} 03
sa[u ; Apewrxoidde
StAND BIUISIA
Auadoud s Jueotpddy
a1 Jo AnuIoia

a3 smoys dew sy J,

Aepunog Auadouy e
AU AJUNOD) s + 6 i v 4 e

FrLLLP L
jusuindeq Buudo)d

dej AUIdIA — T NQIYxy

AASLIOIOULINT ~ SDUBUDA
LO0-¥ 107 — Shaigd




"SJUIPISaI SUNSIXS 3 0}

10 peOJ 24 3JO 1oedwll paysmala
SN[ 2ARY [[IM “AI0JISY) pUY
‘peOy OB PPES WO 30UIPISI
pasodord a1} SUIMIA Udym

peOY NOBQI[PPES 2A0GE 129J 2AL)
Aarewnxourdde aq s Jood 2y Jo
WGray a3 5159588ns pue Aadord
ay) ue urena) daals a1 SaLj1IAA
SIYL "199) ¢f Alorewxoadde

ST UOIJBAD[D YLIOU S, 20UDPISAE
pasodoad ay1 01 proY Yorgo|ppES
WO4J UOIIBAS[D UT 0UILIP Y,

Y TLY9 A9l YHON

Y T819 -A9[H N0

¥ LOS9 -A9[H P AOB([PPES e

saul [adJed
Mepunog Auadody

Pyl apReis
ewpnda Builiun]d

de 55300 pue Apnig SUOHEAS[H YIS — € HQIUXT

ASUWCIOL DG — STUDLO A
LO0F 10T — seGiuxg




Asepunog Aladouyg

‘uerd ans
3t} smoys dewr sty

Pl ARONDTIE ]

o - D
ITLLITLII I TITTTTTTY

0 0 0 0 o e e

el 2ty s

NG MERGRS AbH L

UBld 9U§ — ¥ NAIXH

PRLZYRGLL ABUICIOYLIDYG — SOUDHDA
Eisupodag Buuuoy LO0-¥ L0¢ ~ SHAREI




‘SUOIR|2AD SUIp|ing YInos
pUE 1524 1) SMOYS SIY T,

Al =81 s eieos
Jo835 - UOKDAS|® YJnos

Ll = /1 198

UGCOASD JSOM

Iy DS
{oIou - Bupl Dpad
POr LIS aM [OORSA

ooR
aBruns o8- enbode

A S—"
PRI Y| DS 19315

sund iopao pet
B Lmos GBinor pg ——

BULOO [BO)S LBROD -
pajoBnuos paysiu
gauod joy - Buisss
IO PRI0! JOU Peisn
SOPIAIS Uns
{0545 POY03 10U PajsIy

FrLLLPRGLL
wwswipiodaq Buiuusig

suoneAd[d Sulping — ¢ NqIYXT

AADUIOIOU LY — SDUBLID A
L00-F 10T ~ SHAMX




"109] (¢ SI eouapisar pasodosd a1 J0

UOTIRAS[D YLIOU oY} )iy 199) £ 7 Ajsreunxoxdde s1 aouapisal
pasodoid oy} JO UOIIRAS[2 YINOS 23 130N "UOII0AS FuIpjing
3y} Yum SUOJB SUOIIBAS[S LIIOU PUR 1SBD dY] SMOTS SIT],

RS BN S — |
AT |

]

|

‘DU 'SOIDEIOIS0 B SUPIMOL

Z£ \\-__,/

b= i1 opes . B A R i

usloABe 508

SR pingol o oy

Buaay
BeD pva
BlADUGy

A

-

X

g

L o w5 P

|

T Lo LMOE LENGO)
e
= KOG 20 04 0108

PPLL PSS LL
s wLndag Buuuog

panunuo)) suoleAd[q sulpfing — ¢ HqUxg

MBUCIOYUDEG — SOUDHDA
[0C-¥ LOZ ~ SHQxT




mucw_o_mwxo

, afesed Aussaday
s3auy |93Jey O

Aepunog Apadodd - o

"JUBDJBA QIR JSB2 pUE
110u 911 01 serpadoad
waselpe ayJ.
"20UIPISAI B SBY 15aMm
o 01 Auadord ay g,
"aFered Alosseooe ue
SBlf SUC pUR 200aPISS
e sey sjaoted Sumnge
YINos ay1 Jo au()
‘sontadoud juaoe(pe
oy smoys dew sy,

SaNIAdoId Wadelpy — 9 NqIyxy

FrLLULFRSLL MBUIOOULIDE ~ DDUOLDA
jusLLL s @C,.CCO_n_ 1001 105 — suarixg




*Auadoud our yuou Supjoo]

£Kredoad uo ureirsy doolg

S

<

jueordde) peoy Joeqa[ppes UMOP 1som Furjoo

(y8us uo Apadord

PrLLUAFRSLL

usLLoceg Buuuo]d

s030UJ S — £ NAIYXE

AMEUIOIOUY DY ~ BDUTHD A
150 108 — Suciuxd




"UIeLIa]
dogis umop

pue Auadosd

ol Yuou
Juryool proy
yorqajppes 3uoje
uaye; sojoud 211§

panURU0Y 030U MS — £ HQIYXH

PYLLUAPRSLL MSLUD|OLING - SRUDLIG A
wswiodag Suiusty 100 1O — SHGuxZ




Appendix 1: Lot Consolidation Information




BB, <sis6g Scor ,  Ai/22/2mis

Review this docwment with your aftorney or a
knowledgeable lemd agent before submitting to the Storey
Courty Building' & Planming Depariment. Then it needs
to be recorded at the Storey Cownty Recorder's Office.

Please oote: Once the lots have been oonsolidated, the action is considered
permsment and they cannot be sold or developed as separate lots.

Recorded at the request of and return to:
LANDMARK SURUEYVING

Z35HD  RAMPART. TERRACE
Rﬁ.ﬂo; NI, 898519

Parcel Number(s): @3 — /o]~ & 'Bl o3~ jol~Yé

Lot Consolidation Form

This  declaration is made this o) day of Aovember 2083, by

DAMIEL. P BARTHoOLOMEW  and _MICHELLE 1K, BARTHOLOMEW tenamt or
Jjoint tenants hereinafter referred to as "declarant”.

Recitals:

1. Declarant is the owner of that cettain real property located in Storey County, State of Nevada,
described as follows:

35 € 334 of Block M of the VIRGiauA  CITY MEHIAMDS LnT 1

Subdivision, as recorded_4-/2-73 - mn Book 3 at Page /o, as Document
Number . '

Declarant Property known as Assessors Parcel Number(s): ©3 -~ jo{ — 45 _ Lot
mumber(s) 334 filed in
Book % Page [ Fie# J[T3TH ,Date__ 7 -4 ] - T35 sand

Declarant Property known as Assessor's Parcel N (s): 03—/03'11"&: /° gfebg’m
Book 2 Page_ /O Fie# _-//734 ,Date__ 7- 2 7=/ >

2.  The declarant desires to consolidate the above referenced parcels 1o accoimodate either new or

exwsting improvements which may encroach upon the common interior lot line of the parcels or to
reduce density.

3.  As a condition of approval for the physical improvements listed in recital number two (pursnant
to Storey County Ordinances and the Uniform Building Code), the parcels are to be treated as if legally
merged. .




11/22/2013

AR AT i 0119609 Peoe”™ 2 pase: ante

Declarant(s) hereby declare(s) that the certzin
real property described herein is, and shall be
deemed by Storey County to be merged and shall
constituie but one contiguous, ivseparable parcel.

This declaration shall be deemed a covenant
runniag with the land or as an equitable servitude,
as the case may be, and shall constitute benefits
and burdens to the parcels described herein and
shall be binding on the dedarant and the
declarant's assigms and all persons hereafier
acquiring or owning any interest in the herein
described parcels.
This declaration may not be revoked or medified without the prior express written and
recorded consent of Storey County, Nevada, Storey County is deemed and agreed to be a third
party beoeficiary of this declaration and as such can enforce the provisions of the declaration,

In witness whereof dectarani{s) have executed this declaration on the day and year written
abuve.

Declarant:

. Declarant:
Print Name A7)

fipl/ Print Name

STATE of M? I/ﬂﬂ/{ﬁ— )
A%
COUNTY of M/H:?Shﬁa ;

On this_ 4“" [)dayqf .\:'_49_::.::-Mj')-¢£ 0/3

personally qupearad More me"aud pravad 10 me'an ﬂ:e basis'. of .saliw'nctmy evzdence fa be the
person(s) whose names are subscribed to this instrument, and acknowledge that they executed it

Witn hand.and el
e.:s'my aa o_.ﬁ‘iciala_;

GARYLA. BYDASH
Notary Publle - $tata of Nevada
e/ Appoinitmant Recordad in Washoe County
NO 06-1085M-2 - Explroa Soplambat 30, 214

\

o
d 1‘:‘\(

Diacument Formal werried by Stocey Coundy Board of GommissonersM-15-87 (Page 4-8)




G RGN .. 10609 ot Aiz2/zens

4,  Aftached is a plot map drawn to represent said
lots with identifying legal description and measurement
of property. Show two or more adjoining lots with
middle hne(s) designated for removal as a dotted line.
Indicate northerly direction on the map, Identify lot(s),
block(s) and adjacent roadway(s) or access road(s). Be
sure that owner's name, currert address and phone
number are placed on the map. Lot where the majority
of the residence will be placed will become the lot
number used to identify the consolidated lots;
therefore, said lot will be known as Lot >34 - f .

5. Proof is hereby provided, as per certification
from the Storey County Clerk’s office, that the current
fiscal property taxes are paid-in-full on subject
property:

. ’ ) 2N d
Storey County Clevk or Deputy Clerk

OR, attach original proof-of-payment from the Storey County Clerk’s office.




NI o160 23, 2EA

[zae: HofA

03-j@
A Portion of Sections

31 832,TI8N,R2IE &
5 a6, TI7N,R2IE,MD.B.BM

Pregrur
IYERTAND

-

NOTE " This plal Is lor dsssssment ute only ond @ e . . .
doss Mol repreveant m swreey, No  liobiHly is <w—.ﬁ=‘=n_ o_—v% I_Q—J_Oﬂam Cq.__—. *
._..-:.aoo-_n- .“ --".h. oqn..:wn- of __:.. .."n:. a-:.-o.-n‘
arsoh. Use o 1 ai for olher R Onadudimdn
H«mﬁ.—ﬂmﬂwwhh purposas i -..i!._a-...v unless approved by the Dape,
o Onc o Bk

of Torottan, Meision of Assasamen! Stondardu.

STOREY COUNTY




(R AVART R VAR o 19609 2222

Page

11/22/2033
Paga: &Agry

PLOT PLAN SHOWING A LOT CONSOLIDATION

—
i
i 334
w
| '
8 | N E W
S ‘ N 16°28
i
l
i
i
i
1

LINE EEARING

| DISTANGE
SCALE 1"=100' L N0°50°5 N

OWNERS:; DAN & NICHELLE BAATHOLONEW

11330 SOUTH VIRGINIA ST. # 1434
AENG, NY. 89514
TR0 MP-635-2669




Tax Bill - Storey County

MAKE REMITTANCE PAYABLE TO:
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer
P O Drawer D

11/12/13

Parcel 003-101-45 Roll # 002257

21430 SADDLEBACK RD
VC HIGHLANDS

Virginia City, NV 89440 VCH M-335
District-90.1 Block- ™ Lot- 335
TAXES FOR PERIQOD ol 1 /
July 1, 2013 thru June 30, 2014 LUNIR VAN 0110600 poze' o ooe 2202008
BARTHOLOMEW DANIEL P&MICHELLE K
11380 S VIRGINIA ST
#1434
RENO, NV 838511
ABATEMENT
ASSESSED VALURS TAXES RATE OR. RECAPTURE TAX AMOUNT
Real Estate 5,985 GENERAL 1.6974 10L.59
R SCHOQL OPER .7500 44 .89
TOTAL 5,985 SCHOOL DEBT L1447 B.66
CAPITAL AQUIS .0500 2,99
STATE L1700 10,17
IND MEDICAL Q100 .60
IND ACCIDENT L0150 .90
WILDLAND FIRE L1100 6.58
YOUTH SERVICE 0045 .27
JATL FUND .0745 4.486
FIRE/EMER SRV ,4346 26.01
Ad Valorem Total 3.4607 207.12
Payments to Date 207.12-

PAID IN FULL

EB\(:ﬁ:l;fﬂélﬂAéﬁfkavr




Appendix 2: Letter Submitted by Applicant




February 20, 2014

DESSIE E. REDMOND, MURP, MLA
STOREY COUNTY PLANNER
STOREY COUNTY COURTHOUSE
P.O. BOX 176

VIRGINIA CITY, NV 89440

RE: Variance Request, 21430 Saddleback Road {APN# 00313146)

Dear Ms. Redmond:

The purpose of this letter is to request and substantiate a height variance for a proposed
residential structure to be focated at 21430 Saddleback Road, in the Virginia City Highlands.
Due to steep topographic nature of the property and shallow bedrock substrate, along with a
desire to preserve the natural features of the property, we are limited to a structure with a
minimal dimensional footprint. These constraints, coupled with a desire to accommodate an
aesthetic request from the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association (VCHPOA), a
structure with a greater vertical presence is needed.

Per Storey County Residential Zoning Code 17.16.065 - Height of Buildings and Structures, A
building, manufactured building, manufactured home, or structure may not exceed a height of
three stories or thirfy-five feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a variance. To
overcome the hardships associated with the property and the desire to accommodate aesthetic
sentiments of the VCHPOA, we are requesting a variance of five-feet above the 35-feet listed in
the county code.

The difficult topographic conditions of the property require a structure to be cut info the hillside
to a much greater extent than a similar building on a gently sloping parcel, Building a residence
with a lower height would require a much larger footprint, necessitating significant surface
excavation. These excavation efforts would be difficult due to the shallow bedrock on the parcel,
generating not only a significant scaring of the land but also a substantial financial hardship.
We also wish {o preserve an existing Wild Horse trail that currently traverses the property. The
proposed residential structure would allow us to do so.

One advantage of the steeply sloped parcel is that even with added structure height, the
building would be minimally visible from Saddleback Road, especially when compared to other
residences in the area.

Several design iterations brought before the Virginia City Highlands Architectural Design Review
Committee (VCHADRC) and the VCHPOQA incorporated a roof with a less pronounced sfope,
allowing the structure to meet Storey County Residential Zoning Code height requirements.
Although the lower profile roof, commoen on many Storey County residential structures, is not
prohibited by the either the Virginia City Highlands Architectural Guidelines or Covenants,
Conditions & Restrictions {CC&Rs), we worked diligently with the VCHPOA to address their
concerns regarding roof line aesthetics. The result of our dialog was a structure with a steeper




Page2of2
Variance Request, 21430 Saddleback Road

than anticipated roof, but one that exceeded county code height stipulations. All parties were
pleased with the outcome of this collaborative solution. Qur fallback position would be fo revert
to a low slope roof, something relatively common in Storey County and not prohibited in the
Virginia City Highlands CC&Rs, but our desire to be a good neighbor and find a palatable
solution to all is our desired approach.

Granting of this variance would be within the purpose of this ordinance due to the fact that it
would not be injurious to the area or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare, while offering a
method to mitigate certain hardships. We feel that the residential structure being brought forth
would be a desirable and fitting addition to the community. Therefore, we respectfully request
that you grant this height variance.

Sincerely,

Daniel P, Bartholomew

Michelle K. Bartholomew




Appendix 3: Roof Pitch Variance Request from Applicant — Storey County Building Official Dean
Haymore Approval with Conditions




Aﬂﬂwx # 2

Building Dept
building@storeycounty.org
(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935

Storey County
110 Toll Raad ~ Gold Hill Divide 1
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

3/10/14

Daniel and Michelle Bartholomew
11380 8. Virginia St., #1434
Reno, NV 89511

RE: Roof Pitch Variance Request, 21430 Saddleback Rd., VC Highlands
Dear Mr, & Mrs. Bartholomew,

Your letter of request for Variance of SCC 15.04.060 (D-1.) has been reviewed. SCC 15.04.060 (D-1}
states in part that “Roof pitch above five thousand feet elevation shall not be less than 6/12 pitch for sixty
percent of the total roof.”

Your request for Variance to allow roof pitch of 4/12 for the entire roof has been approved based on the
justifications provided in your letter, with the following conditions;

s The proposed design with a north elevation total height of greater than 35 feet above finish grade
must be approved through Variance by the Storey County Planning Dept.

» The proposed design must be approved and stamped by the Virginia City Highlands Property
Owners Association Architectural Review Commitiee.

¢ The roof design must be structurally engineered for a 70 Ib/sq.ft. ground snow load in addition to
Storey County seismic and wind load requirements, and normal live and dead loads.

¢ The entire roof deck must be protected with a bituminous ice & water shield membrane and
inspected prior to application of roofing materials.

If there are any questions regarding this matter, please contact Storey County Building Inspector Shannon
Gardner @ 775-742-1960.

Storey County Building Official
110 Tolf Rd.

Virginia City, NV 89440
775-847-0966




Appendix 4: Letter from VCHPOA President Jay Carmona




Dessie Redmond

From: lay C. | VCHPOA <president@vchpoa.org>
Sent: Monday, March 17, 2014 12:44 PM

To: Ray & Karlyn McPartlin; Dessie Redmond
Subject: Bartholomew

To whom it may concern,

The Bartholomew family approached the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association Architectural
Committee with plans for a home.

Along with other questionable design ideas, the idea of a flat roof was introduced. After much discussion and

deliberation, the Board decided to allow the metal siding. The Board is unwilling to accept the flat roof design.

The Board will only accept a design that complies with county code regarding roof pitch.

Sincerely,

Jay ( Julian ) Carmona
President

Virginia City Highlands
Property Owners Association
P.O. Box 686

Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Direct: 775.691.0251

A‘P W\CX ﬂ;‘*“




Appendix 5: VCHPO January 14, 2014 Meeting Minutes




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 14-Jan-2014 Page 1 of 4

Virginia City Highlands Property Owners’ Association \
Minutes - Monthly Meeting - Tuesday, January 14, 2014 JAY [766’)5{( pd
V.C. Highlands Fire Station Training Room F S

Present: Jay Carmona, Jack McGuffey, Jason VanHavel, and Dale Morgan

Absent; Jim Watson

I Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, and Approval of Meeting Agenda
President Carmona called the meeting to order at 7:06 pm and declared a quorum
present. A motion by McGuffey, seconded by VanHavel, to approve the agenda as
published was approved unanimously.

H. Approve Minutes of December 10, 2013 Meeting
A motion by Morgan, seconded by VanHavel, to approve the minutes as submitted was
approved unanimously.

i, Comments by Association Members {NRS 116.31083.5)
Cecilia Lak asked if the road closure had been held on December 21 as planned.
VanHavel explained that it had to be postponed due to weather and was held on
December 28 instead. A report appears under item VII{B).

Iv. Review of Financial Statements
Morgan reviewed the financial statements for the month of December. Total expenses
were $7,879; income was $20,992. The cash balance at the end of December was
$287,298. Estimated expenses for January are $6,897.
The complete financial statements are available on the association web site at
http://www.vchpoa.org/Financials.shtml. -

Morgan reported that $150,000 had been transferred to First Independent Bank to a new
Reserve Savings account; $60,000 to City National Bank to a new Reserve Savings
account; $10,000 to City National Bank to a new Operational Savings account; and $5,000
to City National Bank to a new Operational Checking account.

Morgan also reported that he had purchased a copy of QuickBooks software and a laptop
at discounted prices from Office Depot as directed at the previous meeting.

Morgan announced that after a review of all applications the new bookkeeper hired is
Tommy Sargent.
V. Committee Reports

A. Architectural Committee
Chairman Bill Lewis reported that a set of plans was submitted that was not typical to
the area that was not approved by the Architectural Committee, The owners and
their architect were in attendance to present the project to the board for
reconsideration. The proposed residence is to be at 21430 Saddleback Rd.

The project architect explained that the parcel is comprised of two consolidated lots
that are very steep. The aim was to limit the footprint on the property to reduce
damage to the environment. The inspiration for the project was old stamp mills in
the area and the old castle at Austin, Nevada. He stated that he had met with officials

http://www.vchpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes_20140114.htm 3/20/2014




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 14-Jan-2014 Page 2 of 4

of the Storey County Building and Planning Departments and has a letter of
preliminary approval of the design.

Bill Lewis stated that the building code roof pitch regulations for elevations over 5000
feet are 6/12 and the plan does not meet that requirement. The design has a lower
story set below grade in the front with two stories above that. The proposed siding is
rusted corrugated metal siding and the proposed building has a flat roof. It can’t
meet both the height restrictions and the roof pitch requirements. Lewis stated that
setting precedence with this plan would open the door to many deviations to the
requirements.

Rita Lumos read the requirements stated in the Architectura! Guidelines for
Architectural Style and Exterior Materials. These are the guidelines that must be
considered when either approving or refusing building plans.

The architect stated that they are planning a quality project and said that they meet
the spirit of the guidelines if not the specifics.

Tommy Sargent asked if this discussion is restricted to code issues or matters of
esthetics. He is troubled by the style restrictions.

Jack McGuffey stated that he is not overly concerned with the rusted siding, but is
concerned about the flat roof. Many plans have been refused due to the roof pitch in
the past.

VanHavel stated that he agrees that independence of residents is important, but he
has to think carefully about setting a precedent that opens the door to many
variations from the guidelines.

Morgan asked if a sloped roof would kilf the project. The architect answered that
they would either have to get a variance for the height restriction or redesign the

plans completely.

Carmona asked the status of the project. The applicants own the property, but no
improvements have been made.

Bill Lewis suggested that a meeting be set up between the building department,
owners, and the board members so that all issues could be discussed at once. No
action was taken on the request at this time pending the proposed meeting,

B. Road Report
Carmona stated that he feels very comfortable with the status of the road crew.
Further repairs have been made to the 2001 Dodge, new tires and rims installed on
the 2000 Dodge, and an appointment made for installation of new tires on the 2000
GMLC,

Three new plow drivers have been hired. They are John Senko, Bill Evans, and
Giovanni Badalucco. Training has been completed and schedules developed.
Vi, Unfinished Business

hitp://www.vchpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes 20140114 .htm ' 3/20/2014




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 14-Jan-2014 Page 3 of 4

A. MOU with Fire Department regarding Fire Suppression Efforts and Grants

B.

Jim Watson has resigned and was the liaison for the board on this project. Carmona
will contact Chief Hames to discuss what is necessary to reach the Memorandum of
Understanding.

Employee Job Applications

No further action is required on this subject.

ViH. Qid Business
A. Purchase of Printer

Due to the availability of a copier provided by the Fire Department, no printer will be
purchased at this time.

Road Closure Report

VanHavel reported that the road closure was done on Dec. 28 from 8:00 am to 4:00
pm. Many residents purchased Highlands stickers for their vehicles. The closure is
held to maintain the status of the ptivate roadways.

Karlyn McPartlin stated that stop signs were needed and should be on hand for the
next closure. VanHavel stated that a document with an explanation of the closure
should be developed that could be handed out during the closure.

Sheriff Jerry Antinoro said that there had been questions about the legality of the
location of a closure on Lousetown since that is a public road. He recommends that
his office be called so that he can get a deputy out to assist in the future. He
encouraged the association to coordinate with the County on future closures. He said
that no formal complaints were received.

Commissioner Bill Sjovangen asked where the closure was heid. There were two
locations, at the mailboxes and on Lousetown where the two entries merge.
Sjovangen said that he had met with the County Manager, DA, and Sheriff on this
issue. He stated that the DA doubts the closure is necessary. He has asked DA Bill
Maddox and County Manager Pat Whitten to prepare a resolution to be adopted by
the Commissioners to set a Highlands Closure day and authorize stations at the south
end of Lousetown and at the mailboxes. He hopes to have it on the agenda in the
next month or so.

McPartlin said that Maddox told her that there have been instances of folks claiming
right-of-way due fo long use. Her understanding is that the closure is valuable even if
not required by statute.

VanHavel stated that the volunteers emphasized to those they stopped while entering
the area that they are not officials or law enforcement, but volunteers.

Sjovangen announced that he has put together a community grant program that will
be on the Feb. 4 Commission Agenda. The purpose is to provide funds to the four
major population areas in the county. These funds can be in lieu of park funds since
the status of park impact funds is uncertain. The respective associations will decide
the use for the funds. It will be cumulative over 3 years. Sherry Nevin is new
community services director and will be the contact for this program if approved.

The use of the funds must be for the benefit of the community and for an appropriate
use.

VIII. New Business
A. Appointment to Architectural Committee

http://www.vehpoa.org/Minutes/Board. Minutes_20140114.htm 3/20/2014




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 14-Jan-2014 Page 4 of 4

No candidates have been identified to serve on the committee so no appointment
was made.
1X. Any Other Matters which the Board Members Wish to Discuss
Carmona announced that Jim Watson has resigned from the board for business reasons.
VanHavel suggested that there should an item to appoint a replacement on the agenda
for the next meeting. He feels the board should appoint the person who garnered the
next highest number of votes on the last ballot.

X. Comments by Association Members {NRS 116.3108.3{c})
No comments were offered at this time.

Xl Executive Session to Discuss Possible Violations of the CC&R’s, if Necessary
No executive session was held.

X, Adjourn

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:13 pm.

Respectfully Submitted,
Rita Lumos, Recording Secretary

http://www.vchpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes_20140114.htm 3/20/2014




Appendix 6: VCHPO February 11, 2014 Meeting Minutes




| | Appendin # b
VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 11-Feb-2¢14

Virginia City Highlands Property Owners’ Association
Minutes Monthly Meeting - Tuesday, February 11, 2014
V.C. Highlands Fire Station Training Room

Present: Jay Carmcna, Jack McGuffey, Jason VanHavel, and Karlyn McPartlin
Absent: Dale Morgan

I

VL

Call to Order, Declaration of a Quorum, and Approvai of Meeting Agenda

President Carmona called the meeting to order at 7:02 pm and declared a quorum present. A mation by
VanHavel, seconded by McGuffey to approve the agenda as posted was approved unanimously. Carmona
explained that Dale Morgan was unable to attend since his wife had passed away.

Appoint Board Member to Replace Jim Watson

A motion by VanHavel, seconded by McGuffey, to appoint Karlyn McPartlin to fill the vacant position on
the board and hold the office of secretary was approved unanimously.

Approve Minutes of January 14, 2014 Meeting

A motion by approve the January minutes as submitted was approved unanimously.

Comments by Association Members (NRS 116,31083.5}

Dave Abel asked why the roads couldn’t be worked on at the present time since they are wet from the last
storm. Carmona stated that work would begin very soon. He will cover that further in the road report.
Review of Financial Statements

Tommy Sargent reviewed the financial report. Income in January was $63,943. The cash balance as of
February 9 was $366,357. Expenses paid for January are $4,229,

The complete financial statements are available on the association web site at
http:/fwww.vehpoa.org/Financials.shtm] .

Sargent commented that the records that he received from former bookkeeper Lydia Hammack were very
thorough and made the transition go smoothly.

He noted that all of the Bank of America accounts will be phased out over the next few months as the
accounts at City National Bank are fully Utilized.

McPartlin asked if most of the dues have been paid to date. Sargent stated that most have been paid and

that late fees will be calcutated at the end of the month.

Unfinished Business

A. Application/Appeal for Residence at 21430 Saddleback Road
Owner Dan Bartholomew and architect Jack Hawkins appeared with revised plans for the proposed
residence at 21430 Saddleback Road. Hawkins stated that he has worked with the County Building and
Planning Departments to try to comply with all requirements. Alternative roof plans were submitted.
He reported that county agencies suggested that they apply for a variance of the height requirement
and request that approval of a 4/12 roof pitch rather than the 6/12 pitch required by the building
code,

Shannon Gardner of the building department stated that the architect had met with them to
determine what constraints must be met. County building code does require that buildings over 5000
foot elevation must have a roof pitch of 6/12. He neglected to point this out to the architect in their
first meeting. He has talked to Dean Haymore, head of the 8uilding Dept. and Haymore recommended

http:/fwww.vchpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes 20140211.htm[3/20/2014 9:20:43 AM]




VCHPOA Bozrd Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 11-Feb-2014

that the applicant ask for a variance approval of both roof pitch and building height. The building will
be an engineered structure and will have adeguate snow load capability. Gardner said that he does
not think the roof pitch in the code is appropriate, but appreciates that it fits with the architectural
standards of the area. He recommends that the association add this to tha Architectural Guidelines it
it wants to continue to enforce it.

Bill Lewis, Chairman of the Architectural Committee, said that it should be in the guidelines so the
conformity could be maintained. The 6/12 roof pitch is believed to be included in the HRPOA
guidelines but is not in the current VCHPOA guidelines.

Hawkins said that the flat roof came about due to the helght restrictions in the zoning code and the
need for solar panels to be placed out of sight on the roof. The plan has been revised to meet the
county requirements, provided the variances are approved. From the street view, the roof still
appears flat to hide the sclar panels in the preferred scheme. He feels the house will blend in with the
environment and be a good addition to the community.

Concerns were expressed that the appearance of the house still appears to have a fiat roof and may
set a precedent that will be difficult to deal with in the future.

McPartlin expressed concern that the design is so modern and does not meet the style guidelines.

VanHavel said that he does not have a problem with design, since that is not his forte, but is concerned
about setting a precedent by approving a design that does not meet the current criteria.

Carmona asked the property owners present if they are concerned with the style of the house. Cne
owner askad if the association wants the area to look like a mountain home or a mining area.

McGuffey stated that he is OK with the rusted metal siding, bus really has a problem with the
appearance of the roof line,

Gardner said there is no variance process for county building code requirements but the head of the
Building Department can waive them. A variance for the height requirement can be granted by the
Planning Commission.

Lumos was asked if the Architectural Committee would approve the plans as submitted. She said it
likely would not since the house does not fit the architectural guidelines that they are charged to

uphold,

Jeremy Snell says the plan is a tasteful plan but he is concerned that it opens the door to a flood of
very modern homes that do not meet the guidelines.

Sargent stated that the owners want to build a beautiful home that, although it may not strictly meet
the guidelines, would be a good addition to the community.

McGuffey reiterated that the main issue is the roof. He prefers the plan with pitch visible from the
street.

hitp:/fwww.vehpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes_20140211 him[3/20/2014 9:20:43 AM]




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 11-Feb-2014

A mation by McGuffey, seconded by VanHavel, to grant a provisional approval, pending variance
appraval by Storey County, of the plan labeled “Scheme B” which has a 4/12 roof pitch visible from
the street was approved unanimously.

When the variance is granted the applicant will submit the plans, completed application, and fee to the
Architecturai Committee for final approval.

B. MOU with Fire Department regarding Fire Suppression Efforts and Grants
As noted at the November meeting, the Fire Department is planning fuel reduction in the Highlands.
Ron Atkins of Fire Dept. showed Carmona the locations of the proposed work. There will he some
mastication and the removal of dead trees. Waork will begin along the highway and then move into the
Highlands. If anyone needs dead trees removed they should contact the dept.

C. Appointment to Architectural Committee
Carmona reported that he had posted a notice on the Yahoo web site requesting volunteers for the
committee and had not received any response. This item will remain open.

Vil. Committee Reports

A. Architectural Committee
Lumeos reported that there were three applicants at the February meeting. They were for revisions to
previously approved plans and for site work prior to building on one lot. All were approved. Minutes
for the Architectural Committee are posted on the VCHPOA web site.

B. Road Report
Carmona reported that equipment is ready to begin the seasonal roadwork. The next task is to get
bids on gravel. Work will begin as soon as materials are in place.

The sander truck had a hydraulic leak, which was repaired, and minor repairs have been made on plow
trucks.

Pit Road was not plowed due 10 a truck blocking the road. The property owner was contacted and will
move the truck if the road is to be plowed.
Viil. New Business ‘
A. Authorize Retaining Consultant to Update Reserve Study
A motion by McGuffey, seconded by McPartlin, to approve hiring the same consultant who prepared
the previous study with the provision that the fee does not exceed the cost paid for the study 5 years
ago, was approved unanimously.
B. Snow Plowing Issues — Diablo and Pinenut
The owner of four lots at the end of Diablo Road has again requested that his circular driveway be
plowed when it snows. He believes that it is the cul-de-sac easement, but it is totally on his private
property and will not be plowed. There is a plan to improve the cul-de-sac when roadwork is done in
the spring. A similar situation exists on Pinenut Road.,
IX. Any Other Matters which the Board Members Wish to Discuss
McPartlin complained that the Fire Department is filling their water tenders from the well on the fire
station site. She will contact Chief Hames to ask that they stop using the well for that purpose.

McPartlin commented that the issue of the park impact fees has again come to the attention of the
property owners. She has all the information on prior expenditures on the park and she has proof that
impact fees were charged prior to 1992. Commissioner Lance Gilman said he had met with staff they day

http:/fwww.vehpoa.org/Minutes/Board_Minutes_20140211.him([3/20/2014 9:20:43 AM]




VCHPOA Board Minutes, Regular Monthly Meeting 11-Feb-2014

and serious research is under way to determine the amount that should be in the park funds. He said the
money is on hand to restore the fund when the appropriate amount is determined. The separate account
has not been set up yet as required by state statute.

Gilman also stated that the County is not just stopping with restoration of park funds, but other grants
may be available to fund projects.

McGuffey gave kudos to Public Works Director Mike Nevin for sending a crew out to clean up the park
before the picnic.

Ray McPartlin suggested that the park report be put back on the agenda as a regular item.

McGuffey said the association should make a list of what it would like done at the park, on the roads, and
the maintenance of Cartwright to be submitted to the County for their use. The responsibilities of the
county for the maintenance of roads are set out in state statutes,

Gilman reported that Sherrie Nevin is the community outreach individual on staff. Any requests should be
given to her and to the commissioners. McPartlin stated that the HRPQA must participate in the
preparation of a wish list. She will contact them for cooperation in preparing requests.

McGuffey asked that an item be put on the next agenda asking the Architectural Committee to lock at
modification of the Architectural Guidelines. The owners present at the annual meeting must approve any
changes.

X, Comments by Association Members (NRS 116.3108.5)
Cecilia Lak asked what happened to road conditions on Super Bow! Sunday. She noted that there were a
lot of cars in the ditches. Carmona said that the county sanded Cartwright and the association followed
up as needed. He said that the association is not pulling folks out of the ditch due to liability concerns. He
said that excessive speed is the cause of most incidents.

Xl Executive Session to Discuss Possible Violations of the CC&R's, if Necessary
No executive session was held.

i Adjourn

There heing no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:59 pm.
Respectfully Submitted,

Rita Lumos, Recording Secretary

http:/fwww,vchpoa,org/Minutes/Board_Minutes_20140211.htm[3/20/2014 9:20:43 AM]




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 4/15/14 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting., A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting, The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business lcense holder. :

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

G\ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: #
x__ Deph

Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey Countp Community Bevelopment
TBuginess # = 8 Licensing

CAS

e

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office REVISED April 7, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email
Please add the following item(s) to the April 15, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD

SECOND READINGS
A. PHILLY’S NV - General / 420 USA Parkway (Restaurant) TRI
B. BURNHAM PAINTING & DRYWALL — Contractor / 668 Middlegate Road ~ Henderson, NV
C. DIEBOLD, INC. — General / 5995 Mayfair Road ~ North Canton, OH (financial equipment leasor)
D. MARK TWAIN COMMUNITY CENTER — Non-Profit / 500 Sam Clemens Street MT
E. PREFERRED NETWORKS, INC, — Home Business / 355 Mill Street (Internet Provider) vC
F. DOGZ - Home Business / 358 North A Street (dog trainer) VC
G. SAGE HUNTING PRODUCTS - Home Business / 1524 Bonanza Road (hunting accessories) VCH
H. RANDA ACCESSORIES - General / 700 USA Parkway (Distribution Center) TRI

Inspection Required

Note: Mustang Ranch Mercantile at 62 North C Street has been “suspended” from the Agenda until further
notice. Any questions, please contact Stacey Bucchianeri at 847-0966.

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




